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INTRODUCTION

1. The present report brings up to date the information contained in the report
of the Expert on the Question of the Fate of Missing and Disappeared Persons

in Chile ;/ $ransmitted to the General Asgembly at its thirty-fourth session and
it is intended -to be read in conjunction with that report,

24 The Expert's report to the General Assembly contained information on the
regolutions of the General Assembly and the Commission on Humen Rights pursuant to
which Mr, Pelix Ermacora and Mr, Waleed M. Sadi were appointed as experts in their
individual capacity to study the question of the fate of missing and diSappeared
persons in Chile. The Experts were requested by Commission on Human Rights
resolution 11 (XXXV). to report to the Commission at its thirty-sixth session and,
through the Special Raepporteur on the situstion of human rights in Chile, / to - the
General Assembly at its thirty-fourth session. The report to the General Assembly
"also reflected the resignation as an Expert of Mr, Waleed M. Sadi and the decision
of Mr, Felix Ermacora to continue to carry out the study entrusted to him by the
Commission.~§/ The decision of the BExpert to coniinue to carry out the study was
reached in full consultation with the Chairman of the Commission of Human Rights-
and, at the request of the Chairman of the Commission, the Division:of Human Rights
informed the Representative of the Commission of Mr. Sadi's resignation ﬁnd my
decision to continue with the study.

3. In connexion with its consideration of the report of the Expert on the Question
of the Fate of Missing end Disappeared Persons in Chile, the General Assembly at
its- thirty-fourth session had before it a document entitled "Considerations of the
Goverrnment of Chile on the examinetion of the present situation of human rights in
the country",._/ transmitted. by the Permanent Representative of Chile to the

United Nations. At its 69th meeting on 5 December 1979, the Third Committee

adopted for recommendation to the General Assembly a draftiresolution entitled
"fumen Rights in Chile". The General Assembly at its 106th- meeting on

17 December 1979 adopted the draft resolution as recommended by the Commlttee as -
resolution 3ﬂ/179 by a reoorded vote of 96 to 6 w1th 33 abstentions. :

4, With reégard to -the question of the fate of missing persons in Chile, the
‘General Assembly-in its resolution 34/179 expressed its deep concern about recent
reports regarding the discovery in the main cemetery of Santiago de Chile of
hundreds of unmarked(graves'ﬁéiieved to contain the remains of victims of
political executions, and it expressed its hope that the judicial investigation
initiated to determine the origins of these graves would be carried out without
hindrance. The Assembly also noted with particular concern that the Chilean
duthorities have failed %o take urgent and effective measures as requested in its
resolution 33/175 to investigate and clerify the fate of persons reported to have
disappeared for political reasons. Although noting that no persons are roported
to have disappeared in Chile during 1978 and 1979, the Assembly expressed its deep

1/ A/34/58%/Add.1..

2/ Appointed pursuant to paragraph 6 (a) of Commission or Human Rights
resolution 11 (XXXV).

3/ A/34/583/h4d.1 paras. 1-3.
4/ A/c.3/34/12,
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concern that the numerous persons who disappeared between September 1973 and the
end of 1977 and whose’ wnoreﬁbouus are otill unknown, present’ a continuous situation
of grogs and flagrant violationd of human rights. The Assembly urged the

Chilean authorities to investigate and clarify the fate of persons reported to

have disappeared for political reasons, to inform relatives of the outcome, and

to institute criminal procecdings against those respons 1ble for such dlgappearances
and to punish those found guilty.

5. Also in its resolution 34/179, the Assembly reiterated its indignation at the
continued violation of human rights in Chile, and concluded that it should continue
to exercise vigilance with regard to the situation of human rights in that country.
The Assenbly requested the Commission on Humen Rights at its thirty-sixth session to
study thoroughly the report of the Special Rapporteur and the report of the Expert
on missing and disappeared persons. -Further, the Assembly invited the Commission on
Human Rights %o continue to give close attention to the situation in Chile and to
that end, inter alia to consider further at its thirty-sixth session the most
effective ways of clarifying the whereabouts and fate of missing and disappeared
persons in Chile, taking into account the contents of the report prepared by the
Expert on missing and disappeared persons. The Assembly urged the Chilean
authorities to co-operate with  -the Special Rapporteur and the BExpert on missing

and disappeared persons.

6. - With regard to the question of miss lng persons in general,the Assembly in 1bs
resolution 34/179 called the attention of the Commission on Human Rights to the
recommendations in the report of the Expert on missing and disappeared persons in-
Chile, when pursuing the question of diseppeared persons as requested by '
General Assembly resolution 33/17) and when congidering resolution 5. B (XXXII) of

the Sub-Commission on Prevention of Discrimination and Protection of Minorities.

In this comnexion General Assembly resolution )4/178 of 17 December 1979 entitled
"The right of amparo, habeas corpus or other legal remedies to the same éffect"

may also be noted. In that resolution the Assembly expressed its conviction that the
application within the legal gystem of States of amparo, habeas corpusg, or other
legal remedies to the same effect, is of fundamental importance for, infer alia,
clarifying the whereabouts and fate of missing and disappecred persons and the
Assembly called upon all Govermments to guarantee to persons within their jurisdiction
the full enjoyment of the right of amparo, habeas corpus, or other legal remedies
to the same effect, as may be applicable in their legal system.

7.  In the above-mentioned document entitled '"considerations of the Government of
Chile on the examination of the present situation of humen rights in the cOuntﬁy”_j/
transmitted to the General Assembly by the Permanent Representative of Chile to the
United Nations, the Government of Chile again raised objections to the decisions
of the -General Assembly and the Commission on Human Rights to establish special
procedures for dealing with the question of human rights in that oountry._é/ The
legal aspects of the position of the Government of Chile on the competence of the

5/ A/C.3/34/12..

6/ Ibid., Chapter II, paras. 1-8.
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General Assembly avid the Commission én Human Rights to select whatthose organs
consider appropriate procedures for dealing with situations of violations of-

human rights were exemined in the report of the Expert to the General Assembly 7/
and in the report to the General Assembly of the Special Rapporteur on the situation
of human rights in Chile. 8/ In regard %o the renewal by the Government of Chile

of its objections, the Expert wishes to refer to the enalysis contained in the
above-mentioned reports to the General Assembly}_g/

8. The Govermment of Chile, also in the above-mentioned document, objected to
the fact that only one expert carried out the study of missing persons in Chile.
The Govermment argued that since two experts were appointed pursuant to

Commission on Human Rights resolution 11 (XXXV) %o study the fate of missing
persons in Chile, the report to the General Assembly should by necessity

have been signed by both of them, regardless of whether they were in agreement with
each other: The fact that only one expert undertock the study and signed the
report was, in the Govermment's view, a clear violation of the Commigsion's
resolutlon.A__/ In this regard it should be noted that nothing in Commission
resolution 11 (XXXV), in the summary records of the Commission's discussion leading
to the adoption of that resolution ll/ nor in the Commission's report to the
Eeonomic. and Social Council 12/ suggests that it was the intention of the
Commission to establish e group of two experts. Rather, the Commission provided
for the appointment of two persons "as experts in their individual capacity™ to
carry oulb the study, and, although they were expected to co-operate in a manner
which they considered appropriate in their task, under the Commission's resolution
the competence of one expert does not necessarily depend upon that of the other,
Further, it could not have been the intention of the Commission on Human Rights
that the study should be frusirated by the resignation of one of the experts. In
this regard, it mey be noted that Mr. Sadi, in hig letter of resignation stated

he was doing so "in order to avoid frustrating the work of the experts". ;é/
Pinally, as mentioned above, the decision to continue the gtudy after the
resignation of Mr. Sadi was taken in full consultation with the Chairman of the
Commission on Human Rights and the Commission's members were informed. It would
thus appear that no legal bases exist for concluding that after the resignation of
Mr. Sadi the fact that, only the remaining expert signed the report to the

General Assembly constitutes a violation of Commission resolution 11 (XXXV).

9. With regard to the subsfance of the question of the fate of missing persons
in Chile the Govermment of Chile in its above-mentioned considerations on the
examination of the present situation of human rights in that country stated as
followss

A/34/583/Add.], paras. 6-7.

A/34/58%, paras. 1-13.

A/34/583, paras. 1-13 and A/34/583/Add.1, paras. 6-7.
A/C.3/34/12, chapter II, pera. 6.

E/CN.4/SR.1506, 1508..

B/1979/36.

A/34/583/Add.1, para. 3.

I
~— T
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A1l cascs of persons who have allegedly digapneared are brought before
the courts of justice, which by law are the only bodies empowered fto :
investigate them. The respecﬁive judges, nigh~ranking members of the bench,
have express instructions: from the Supreme Court to make exhaustive
investigations of each such.case. The Executive Power, for its part,
co-operates fully with the Courts in the action taken by the latter, and
accordingly wrespects their decisions. Thanks %o these measures, such
cages are gradually being clorified. The national press reports in detail
on the cource and development of the proceedings." ;&/

The present report contains informetion relating to this gtatement.

1C. Vith a view to the preparation of the present report a letter dated

10 January 1980 was addressed to the Permanent Repregentative of Chile to the
United Nations Office at Geneva in which the Govermment of Chile was informed that
the Expert in Missing Persons in Chile was ready to meel with representatives of

the Chilean Govermment if the Government wished to provide infommation or exhanage
views relative to the subject of the Expert's mendate. The Permanent Representative
of Chile in a response dated 15 Jonuary 1975 reiferated the position of the
Government of Chile that it would not accept ad cagum actions or procedures and

that the Govermment resffirms its intention to comnly with universal and generally
applicable procedures only after the special procedures—have been exhausted.

11, The present report is based on information gathered by the Bxpert,
information submitted to him and hearings held during Janvary 1980, The Expert
received: information from tuo sources which has proved particularly valuable for
understanding during the relevant period, arrest and detention for political or
national security reasons in Chile, the treatment of detainees and finally the
fate of missing persons. One such source was information supplied by a person
who reports being closely connected with the Executive Branch of Govermment in
Chile for some years. The Expert was able to check the information so supplied
against his own knowledge gained during his visit in July 1978 to that country

as a member of the Ad Hoc Working Group on Chile and with other sources of
information. Ir narticular, the Expert ias eble to verify information that only a
person in the position which this gource reports holding would have had access to.
The Expert is convinced that this source hes accurate information on missing
persons in Chile including the whereabouts of the remains of persons listed as
missing. To protect this source's personsl security elements of identity and
details susceptible  to lead to identification have been kept confidential by the
Expert. 15/

12. Another specific source of information of particular value was the testimony
given at a public hearing in the Third Civilien Chamber of the Land Court -of Boenn,
Federal Republic of Germany,; on 30 October 1979 in the suit by Colonia Dignidad
against Amnesty International. At that hearing Mr. Samuel Enrique Fuenzalida Devia

14/ A/C.3/34/12, Chapter I, para. 4.
15/ See Chapter V, Conclusions and Recommendations, para., 96,
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stated that in 1973 while he was performing his military service (from April 1973

to March 1975) he weg transferred after September 1973 to the DINA where he

served until 1975, Mr. Fuenzalide testified principally concerning Colonia Dignidad}ﬁy
and he reported having taken there a person known as "Loro Matfas". Loro Matias Has
been identified as Alvara Modesto Vallejos Villagran, listed as a missing person.
. (See below paras. 44-46.) Subsequent to this testimony the Govermnment of Chile
reported that, as a result of a check by the CNI (Centro Nacionel de Informaciones)
"of the files of +the ex~DINA that were in the CWI's possession, "it had been
established that Samuel Enrigue Fuenzalida Devia had not belonged to DINA™,™
hAccording to a Govermment certificate Fuenzalida performed his militery service

from April 1973 to March 1975. In this regard the Expert notes thaot there were

two types of DINA personnel, those coming from the Institutions of National Defense
(Army, Navy, Air Force, Carablneros) and persons not belonging to such Institutions
and recruited directly by the DINA. ._l/ The Ad Hoc Working Group on Chile

reported that the vast majority of the gtaff ‘of DINA are active members of the.
various branches of the sarmed forces or the Carabineros. 18/ A strict reading of the
information supplied by the Government does not, in the Expert's view, exclude the
possibility that Mr., Fuenzalida, while not having been directly contracted by DINA,
was in fact placed at DINA's disposal. by the Chilean Army., The Expert also notes
the statements by the Director of the DINA and the Minister of the Interior that”
the identities of intelligence agents must be kept secret. 19/

13. The Commission on Human Rights at its thirty-sixth session also has before it
Cnase Reports on missing persons in Chile, document E/CN.4/1381, prepared by the
BExpert and which provide information from a wide range of relevant sources in more
detail than in the present report or in the Expert's report to the General Assembly.
Where the present report deals with a case of a missing person contained in the
Case Reports an appropriate reference is made.

16/ Colonia Dignidad was described in the report of the Ad Hoc Working Group
on Chile to the Commission on Human Rights at its thirty-second session

/CN 4/1188 pare. 129) as a large agricultural and cattle farm near the
town of Parral in the province of Linares, which includes land in the Andes
mountains right up to the Argentine border.

17/ Decree-Law No. 521, of 18 June 1974, arulcle 3, see A/10485y Annex XVI,

18/ A/31/253, pare. 345,

_2/ A/34/585/Add 1, para. 148, Note may also be made of the certificates
supplied by the Govermment of Chile which subsequently proved to be inaccurate.
See A/34/533/Add.1, paras. 63, 70, 152, 125-127 and A/33/331, para. 399 and
Annex XLV,
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I. RECENT INFORMATION ON MISSING PERSONS IN CHILE

Introduction

14. The informatiocn concerning missing persons in Chile which has become available
since the Expert's report was presented to the General Assembly deals principally with
the flndlng of new graves of persons who disappeared in 1973 and with the actions of
the carabineros, the military forces and the DINA which led to the disappearance of
detalnees Ain 1973 and afterwards. This new information also includes decisions of
which civilian judges charged with investigating missing persons, by which they
determine that they ladk Jurisdiction to continue their investigations because of the
involvement of military personnel. As a result the cases are transferred to.the
military courts. With regard to the information presented in the report to the
General iAssembly, ;/ it is maintained subgect to any modifications or addltlons
contained in the present report.

15. The growingrconcern'of'international organizations with the gquestion of missing
persons in general and with missing persons in Chile, including that of the former

Ad Hoc Working Group on Chile, was reflected in chapters I and II of the report to the
General Agsembly. The Governing Body of the International Labour Organisation at its
two hundred and eleventh session in November 1979, acting upon a recommendation of the
Committee on Freedom of- Association, continued that organization's consideration of the
imprisonment and disappearance of trade union leaders or members by requesting the
Chilean Government to continue to supply information on the outcome of the proceedings
under way and, in general, on the persons mentioned in the list drawn up by the
Committee in its 177th Report. _/ The missing persons mentioned in that list are also
reflected in the lists of missing persons prepared by various organizations including
the Ad Hoc Working Group on Chile j/ and on which the IExpert's reports are bhased.

16, In June 1979 the Parliamentary Assembly of the Council of Burope recommended
(recommendation No. 868) that the Committee of Ministers of the Council of Europe
invite the governments of member States to support the creation of an international
commigsion of enquiry to investigate the fate of missing political persons in Chile
which would report to the United Nations Commission on Human Rights and to urge the
Chilean authorities in the strongest terms to obtain inter alia information on the
fate of the missing persons. The Assembly also adopted an order (No. 381) which
instructed the President of the Assembly to inform the Chilean Government of its deep
concern about the fate of political prisoners and particularly those who are missing,
emphasizing the families' right to be informed of the fate of their missing members,
after arrest or detention by the security forces. 4/

1/ 4/34/583/hdd.1

_/ ILO document GB 211/12/10, para. 432, recommendations approved- by the
Governlng Body at its two hundred and eleventh session, November 1979

3/ 4/32/227, Annex LV.
4/ See Council of Europe document, AS/PER(31)PV.1 dated 24 August 1979.



E/CN.4/1363
page 7

17. The Inter-imerican Commission on Human Rights in its report to the ninth session
of the General Assembly of the. Organization of American States (La Paz, Bolivia,
October 1979; dealt with the disappearance of persons in countries of the region and
recommended prompt clarification of the status of persons who have disappeared. 5/
With regard to Chile the Inter-imerican Commission recommended that the Government
adopt those measures necessary to clarify the situation of the missing detainees
swiftly ‘and definitively. é/ The General Assembly of the Organization of

imerican States, in resolutions adopted at its ninth session, declared that the
phenomenon of disappearances was a stain on the conscience of the Hemisphére and
totally contrary to commonly-held traditional values and to the. declarations and
agreements signed by the American States, and it supported the Commission's
recommendation concerning the rapid clarification of the position of persons who had
disappéared in the circumstances described in the annual report. Z/ The

General Assembly of OAS also urged those States in which persons had disappeared to
refrain from promulgating or applying laws which might hinder investigations into such
disappearances., 8

18. With regard to Chile, the General Assembly of the Organization of American States,
at its ninth session, adopted a resolution in which it decided to urge the-Government
of Chile to speed up the adoption and implementation of the measures necessary for
effective protection and guarantee of the full enjoyment of human rights in Chile,
particularly with regard to clarification of the position of detainees and dlsappeared
persons, the return of exiles to their homeland, the derogation of the state of
emergenoy and the rapld restoration of the rlght to vote.. 2/ - - -

19. The report of the Expert to the Gereral Assembly clearly showed the dual nature
of the problem of missing persons in Chile. ;g/ On the one hand the problem is

one of respect for the human rights of the missing persons and on-the-ether of the
humanitarian need of the relatives of the missing persons to know their whereabouts
and fate. In this latter sense it is easy to see that the problem extends beyond
that of the missing persons themselves to the many thousands of their relatives who
are directly and continually affected.

5/ OAS document OEA/Ser.P AG/doc.1101/79, section Two, Part II.
6/ Ipid., section four.

Resolution entitled "Annual Report of the Inter-American Commission on
Human Rights", reproduced in document OEA/Ser.L/V/II1.48 doc. 6, dated 21 November 1979,
of the Inter-imerican Commission on Human Rights.

8/ Resolution entitled "Promotion of Human Rights", ibid.

2/ Resolution entitled "Annual Report of the Inter—Amerlcan Comm1351on on
Human Rights", supra.- '

10/ A/34/583/4dd.1, paras. 46 and 165—177.‘



E/CN.4/1363
page 8

A, Information concerning persons missingfin 1973

~ 20, The Expert's report to the Gengral'Assembly contgined information on the military
pronunciamiento of 11 September 1973, the large scale arrests which followed, the
exercise by many authorities in particular the military'authorities and Carabineros
of the special emergency powers of arrest limited by the Constitution to the President,
the failure to keep records of arrests and detentions and}summary executions. The
report also reflected the estimated 40,000 to 50,000 persons who were detained in the
period following the pronunciamiento- and the 247 strongly documented cases of missing
persons reported by the Vicaria de la Solidaridad. 11/ =~ Information received since the
report was presented to the Assembly indicates that the number of cases of missing
persons for 1973 should be increased, since, as is reflected below, new information has
been received about persons who disappeared in 1973 ;g/ but whose disappearance had not
previously been reported.

1. Cages of missing persons dealt with in the report to the Assembly

(a) Individual cases

21, The report to the Assembly dealt with a number of individual cases of persbns who
disappeared in 1973 selected as illustrative of that period.

(i) Joxge Klein Pipper: 13/ Arrested on 11 September 1973 by military
personnel and taken to the Tacna Barracks of the Air Force., No further
information has been received in this case.

(ii) Fernando de la Cruz Olivares Moxi: ;4/ Arrested on United Nations premises
on 4 October 1973 by Navy Lieutenant Jorge Osses Novoa and taken to the
Ministry of Defence. No further information has been received on the
investigation into the fate of this United Nations staff member.

(iii) Bautista van Schouwen Vasey: ;5/ A British national, he was arrested on
13 December 1973 by persons dressged in civilian clothes, Press and
Government reports acknowledged his arrest. No further information has been
received on this case.

11/ A/34/583/A44.1, paras. 47-55.

;g/ See below, for example: Persons missing in Paine in 1973 and the discovery
of numerous unidentified graves at the Santiago cemetery; Missing persons from Mulchén
and the discovery of hidden graves and the case of arrests and executions in Osorno:
Declaration of Mrs, Blanca Ester Valderas Garrido.

13/ Af34/583/Md4.1, para. 56 and E/CN.4/1381, Case report No. 1.
14/ A/34/583/4dd.1, para. 59 and E/CN.4/1381, Case report No. 2.
15/ A/34/583f/Add.1, paras. 73-74 and E/CN.4/1381, Case report No. 3.
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(b) Group cases

22. The following group cases of persons who disappeared in 1973 were reflected in
the report to the Jissembly:

(i) Report of missing persons and the discovery of bodies at Cuesta Barriga: 16/

23+ Late in 1978 two bodies were discovered buried at the Cuesta Barriga and the
press. carried reports of executions which had occurred in the area in September 1973.
A Jjudicial investigation was begun and a number of missing persons were connected with
these events. 4 criminal complaint was filed against carabineros in relation to one
missing person which stated that José Guillermo Barrera had been taken by carabineros
along with six other detainees to be executed at the Cuesta Barriga and that by
Teigning to be dead after the shots had been fired he had been able to escape. On
14 ilarch 1974, the day after he had informed the authorities of what had occurred, he
was taken from his home on 14 March 1974 by persons identified as carabineros officers
and has not been seen since, No further information had been received concerning

the case of Cuesta Barriga nor on the disappearance of José Guillermo Barrera,

(ii) Longuén: Missing persons from the Maureira, Astudillo and Herndndez
familiess 17/

24. On 7 October 1973, 15 persons were arrested by carabinercs at the town of Laja,
and taken to the carabinercs post. They subsequently disappeared and a judicial
enquiry into the case which had produced no results was suspended in 1976. In
December 1978 a number of bodies were found buried at an abandoned mine near the town
of Lonquén. A special investigating judge was appointed who determined that the
bodies found were those of the 15 persons arrested and that the carabineros had been
responsible. The case was thus transferred to the Military Courts of Santiago, which
have jurisdiction over the carabineros, and eight carabineros were indicted and placed
under arrest in thelr sexrvice units. The case was, however, suspended because of the
amnesty decree of April 1978 and the carabineros were freed,

25. The relatives requested the return of the bodies to enable them to give them a
proper burial and their return was ordered by the Military Court. A hunger strike by
relatives of missing persons, which had supported the request for the return of the
bodieg, was ended when this announcement wasg made. However, the bodies were not
returned to the relatives, and with one exception, were buried in a mass grave at the
Isla de Maipo cemetery without the families having been notified. ;g/ Lawyers for .
the relatives filed a complaint with the Military Court of Santiage against the
Military Prosecutor in connexion with the burial of the bodies and asked that the
bodies be exhumed and returned to theixr relatives. According to information received
since the report to the hAssembly was prepared, the Military Court on 15 November 1979
decided that the Military Prosecutor had disobeyed the Court's order concerning the

16/ A/34/583/44d.1, paras. 57-58.
17/ A/34/583/M4d.1, paras. 60-72.
18/ 4/34/583/Add.1, paras. Ti-72.



E/CN,4/1363
page 10

burial and it decided to apply to the Military Prosecutor the discipline of written
censure. The Court, however, refused tc order the bodies exhumed and returned to
relatives because it stated that it was impossible to identify individually the remains
.which had been placed in the common grave. ;2/ On 2% NWovember 1979 lawyers for the
relatives filed criminal complaints against the Military Prosecutor, charging him with
prevarication, falsification of public_documentation, illegal burial and contempt

and the Director of the Santlago Institute of Forensic Medicine charging him with
illegal burial, contempt, harassment and abuse of private individuals. ;Q/ It was
reported on 6 December 1979 that the Military Court of Santiago decided to require a
deposit of 300,000 pesos from the relatives as a condition to continuing the
investigation of the complaint against the Military Prosecutor. g}/ No further
information has been received regarding these cases.

(iii} Disappearanoes in Osorno and nearby towns: 22/

26. In 1979 a criminal complaint was’ presented concerning the arrest and disappearance
of 11 persons who had been taken into custody by carabinercs after 11 September and in
October 1973 in Osorno and the region.  Details of sach case was given in'the report to
the LAssembly. Recent information indicates that a special investigating judge has
been appointed to investigate these cases, which have graown.to 13 in number and that

the judge is receiving evidence. 23/ However, no information has been received on any
results of the investigation. For further information on events in the Osorno region
during September 19735 see below the new information concexning arrests and executlons

in Osorno based on the testimony of Mrs, Blanca Ester Valderas Garrido.

(lv) “Disappearance of 20 personsg in LaJa and the discovery of bodies buried
at Yumbel cemetery: 24/

27. The report to the General Assembly contained information on the criminal complaint
made ‘against 13%.carabineros charging them with kidnapping and murder in relation to

20 persons who had been arrested after 11 September 197% and who had been detained at
the Laja Police Station until 18 September 1973 when they were removed and subsequently
disappeared. i speclial investigating judge was appointed in 1979 who in the course of
his investigation learned that 18 bodies had been secretly buried in the Yumbel
cemetery. He ordered the bodies exhumed. Information received since the
presentation of the report to the Assembly indicates that the missing persons were
first buried in a grave at a property known as "San Juan" some 16 ki from Laja and that

El Mercurio, 17,November_1979.

El Mercurio, 30 November 1979, 2 December 1979 and Solidaridad No. 82, p.6.
Bl Mércurio, 6 December 1979.

A/34/583/4dd.1, para. 75.

El Mercurio, 15 December 1979.

L/34/583/4dd.1, paras. 76~77.

BEBEBE
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one tonth later carabineros exhumed the bodies and reburied them in the Yumbel
cemetery. At the San Juan grave site, a 19th body, that of Radl Urra Parada was
discovered. gg/ The remains buried at the Yumbel cemetery were identified by their
relatives and medical experts and a list of the missing persons is contained in the
report to the lAssembly. gé/ The special investigating judge permitted the remains to
be turned over to the relatives. gz/ On 28 November 1979, 18 of the bodies were
buried by their relatives at the cemetery of Laja and a 19th was buried at Los Angeles
cemetery. 2§/ Latest reports indicate that the judge is continuing his investigation
and that it is expected he will declare himself without jurisdiction and pass the case
to the military courts because military personnel were responsible. 22/

28L "In undérstanding the events of Laja the testimony of a person who was detained
with the missing persons in the Iaja Police Station but who escaped execution is
“helpful. According to the newspaper La Tercera of 7 October 1979, a businessman,
Mr. Alonso Hernandez, stated:

"I was arrested on the fourteenth at my place of business and accused of
engaging in black market activities, because I kept a stock of flour. A police
officer made a series of accusations, which were false, A1l my protests were
ignored, and I was taken to the local caribineros station. There I was put in
one of the two lock-ups, which were full of people. In the one I was in, there
were eight people, and in the other I think there were 10.%

In his statement the shopkeeper said:

T was made to talk several times and pressure was put on me to inform on
other people. They insisted that I was involved in the black market. Finally,
early in the uorning on the seventeenth I was separated from the rest, put into a
van and taken to Los fngeles. The officer apologized, because I had nothing to
do with the affair. I told him I was a Christian Democrat, but not a Marxist.
However, since no-one really knew what was happening, it was decided to lock me
up . In the prison, on the eighteenth in the afternoon, a warder came and said:
"What a lucky escape, my friend. You almost died like your comrades. They
were killed this morning while they were being brought to Los lingeles'. T was

- scared to death and thought the same thing was going to happen to me. I prayed
to God, and here I am. But I think that those responsible should be punished."

2. Cases of missing persons not dealt with in the report to the General Assembly

29. Information has been received on the following cases which occurred in 1973 and
which were not dealt with in detail in the report to the General iAssembly.

El Sur, 19 October 1979.
L/34/583/Add.1, para. T6.

£l Mercurio, 27 November 1979.
Hoy, 5-11 December 1979.

Ibid.

BEERE
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(a) Pergsons missing in Paine and the discovery of numerous unidentified graves at

the Santiago cemetery

30. As a result of a decision by the Supreme Court of 21 March 1979 a special
-investigating judge was appointed in the Court of Appeals of Rancagua to investigate

22 cases of persons who were reported to have been arrested on 16 October 1973 at

their homes by army personnel. The report to the General Assenbly mentioned some of
the difficulties he had encountered in his investigation through lack of co-operation
from the military authorities. 30/ It has been reported that some 20 other cases of
persons who disappeared at that time are not being investigated and a check of the
names of those persons reveals that in at least eight cases the names had not
previously been reported on the list of missing persons of the Vicaria de la Solidaridad
or the International Committee of the Red Cross. 31/ 1In most of these 20 cases the
arrests were reportedly made by persomnel of the infantry regiment of San Bernardo. jg/

31. On 13 November 1979 the Vicar General cof the Catholic Church of Santiago presented
to the special investigating judge charged with the Paine cases a written report on the
clandestine burial of some 300 bodies in "Patio" No. 29 of the Santiago cemetery.

That report was the result of information provided confidentially to the Church
authorities from a person who said he witnessed the burials. According to the
description given by this person,

"The corpses were transported in lorries, in packing cases without lids,
two or three corpses in each ... lying in various positions: gome face down
and others face up ... they had bullet wounds ... some were mutilated (a limb
or the head missing) +eo they were buried in trenohes,(two or three in a trench)

“ +e. naked and sometimes with their clothes next to them”, 33/

Some 300 graves were found in "Patio" 29 marked "N.N.", for name unknown, or with
"N.M." and a name, or with two names. The graves were reportedly uncared for
indicating that they were not known to the relatives. According to the Church's
report, the person who provided the information said he knew some of the bodies were
of perdons from Paine who, it appeared, were brought from Chena Hill by military
‘persomnel -of the San Bernardo infantry regiment. é&/

32. lLccording to the magazine Hoy,at the end of September.1973 some 20 persons were
arrested near Paine by personnel of the San Bernardo regiment, among thenm
Juan Guillermo. Cuadra Espinoza, and that only two of the 20 returned to their homes.

30/ A/34/58%/4dd.1, para. 39.

31/ Solidaridad, No. 82, p.5. The names listed therein have been checked
against the composit computerized list of missing persons contained in the report of
the Ad Hoc Working Group on Chile to the General Assembly at its thirty-second: session,

A/32/227, Annex IV.
32/ Solidaridad, No. 82, p.5. , ‘
33/ Hoy, 21 to 27 November 1979. See also El Mercurio, 14-15 November 1979.

34/ Hoy, 21 to 27 November 1979.
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One of those who returned stated he was held with Juan Guillermo Cuadrs ESpinozq at
the detention camp at, Chena Hill.,  The mother of Juan Cuadra subsequently found a
grave with his name on it at "Patio™ 29. 35/ in article in the magazine Solidaridad
reads in this connexions

"The fact that all those who disappeared from Paine had at some stage been
in the Chena detention camp, and the discovery of the corpse of one of the
persons concerned in Patic 29 of the Santiago public cemetery would suggest that
the other persons who disappeared from this place may have suffered the same fate
as Cuadra Espinoza." jé/

33, According to an article in El Mercurio of 15 December 1979 the special
investigating judge has decided to declare himgelf without jurisdiction and to transfer
the cases of the missing persons in Paine including the Church's report of the burials
at "Patio® 29 to the military courts because of the involwenent of military personnel.
~ccording to reports the judge has officially inspected "Patio” 29 éi/ but no further
information has been received of additional steps, such as exhumation of the bodies,
which would help to clarify the identities of the persons buried there.

(b) Missing persons from Mhlohéh and the digcovery of hidden graves

34. A criminal complaint presented during 1979 to the First Court of Los Angeles
(Primer Juzgado ) by the Arshbishopric of Concepcidn on behalf of relatives of missing
persons alleges that at the beginning of October 1973 a military patrol of some

30 armed men accompanied by civilians arrested 13 workers at two properties (fundos) at
Mulchén and that those persons were never seen again. 38/ One report states that the
civilians who participated in the arrests were members of the movement "Patria y
Livertad”. 39/ A check of the names of the 13 missing persons shows that none were
reported as missing on the lists of the Vicaria de la Solidaridad or the International
Committee of the Red Cross 40/ and they were not mentioned in the reports of the iAd Hoc
Working Group on Chile nor in the Expert's report to the General Jssembly. 4 request
by the relatives to the Court of Appeals of Concepcidn that a special investigating
judge be named for the case was denied and the investigation wemains in the hands of
the Los .ingeles court. 41/ o o

Ibid.
Solidaridad, No. 82, November 1979.
El Mercurio, 18 November 1979. |
El Mercurio, 14 December 1979.

EL Mérourio, 29 December 1979.

The names are: Alejandro iAlbornoz Gonzdlez, David ilbornoz Gonzalez,

Jogé Guillermo Albornoz Gonzdlez, Miguel Albdrnoz Acufia, Felidor Albornoz Gonzale7,
Alberto Albornoz Gonzdlez, Luis Alberto Godoy Sandoval, Fernando Gutiérrez,

Florencio Rubilar Gutiérrez, José Liborio Rubilar Gutlcrrez, José Lorenzo Rub;lar
Gutiérrez, Juan Roa Riqueime and Jerdnimo Sandoval Medina.  El Mercurio, .

~, December 1979. The check was made against the compogit computerized list contained
in Armex LV to document 4/32/227.

41/ El Mercurio, 14 December 1979.

ekt
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35. On 27 December 1979 the remains of bodies, reportedly five in number, were found
in a common grave at a property called "Pemehue" in Mulchén and it is reported that

two of the bodies were identified by relatives through clothing as Gerdnimo Sandoval
Medina and Juan de Dios Roa Riquelme, two of- the missing persons. ég/ At the same
time it was reported that some months before another common grave had been found at the
property called "Carmen Maitenes" and that seven bodies had been recovered. They were
reportedly sent to the Institute of Forensic Medicine at Santiago. 43/ No further
information has been received on the judicial investigation into these cases.

(o) Investigation by the Special Judge of Temuco

36. The special investigating judge appointed for the Court of ippeals of Temuco
undertook the investigation of some 27 cases of migsing persons i&/ of which,

- according to the files of the Expert,vl7 occurred in 1973, one in 1974 and two in 1975.
Five of the persons were not reported as missing on the lists of the Vicaria de la
Solidaridad nor on the lists of the International Committee of the Red Cross, and
were not dealt with in the reports of the id Hoc Working Group on Chile nor in the
Expert's report to the General Assembly. The judge appears to be investigating only
somewhat more than half of the cases of missing persons in the Temuco jurisdiction
since according to an article in the magazine Solidaridad, éi/ the number of cases of
missing persons reported to the Courts of Temuco iw higher than 40, With reégard to
three of the cases being investigated by the special judge, the relatives had filed &
criminal complaint naming three carabineros as the persons responsible for their
disappearance. éé/ Two other cases involve the disappearance of a citizen of Bcuador,
José Garcia Franco, 47/ and a citizen of France, Etienne Pesle de Menil. 48/ It has
been reported that the special judge declared himself without jurisdiction and
transferred the cases he was investigating to the military courts because of the
participation of military personnel in the arrests and disappearances.

Bl Mercurio, 29 December 1979}
A/34/583/Add.1, para. 39.
Solidaridad, No. 81, p.7.
Ibid.

José Felix Garcia Franco was taken into custody at about 14 hours on

1% September 1973 when he voluntarily reported to the police after” orders to that
effect were left with his wife. He was detained at the Segunda Comisaria of Temuco
until 18 September 1973. His wife was told he had been taken to the border. He has
not been seen since in Chile or by his family in Ecuador. (Dénde_Estéh?,'Vol. 4,

No. 213).

4§/ Etienne Marie Peslé de Menil was arrested at his place of work on e
19 September 1973 by persomnel of the Chilean Air Force., His arrest was subsequently
denied by the authorities and he has not been seen since (Dénde Estén?, vol. 4, No.217).

49/ Solidaridad, No. 81, p.7.

333439
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(d) Arrests and executions in Ooorno° Declaration of Mrs. Blanca Bster Valderas
Garrldo . o S '

37. Information recently supplied by Mrs. Blanca Ester Valderas Garrido, who has

been in hiding since 18 September 1973, ~_/ helps clarify the events in Chile in
~fSeptember 1973.  In a criminal complaint for kidndpping, murdel ahd. attampted murder
filed in November 1979 with a court (Prlmer Juzgado de Leuras: in the towm of -

Entre Logos, Chiley Mrs., Valderas Garrido states that she and her husband, Joel Fierro,
together with Rlcardo Huenumén Huenuman, Sergio Huichacan and a person named Nuiiez,
were arrested on 17 September 1973 by carabineros from the carabinerog base at

Entre Logos (Fl Retén de Entre Logos) and held at that base until the morning of

18 September 1973 Mrs. Valderas Garrido states that she and the others arrested
were members of the Socialist Party. According to her statement, at one a.m. on

18 SeDuember 1973, they were taken from their cells at the C%rmblpelo" base and handed
over to masked and armed men who placed them in a truck and “drove thei: to a bridge over
the Pilmarquen river. They were taken from the truck and made to stand along the

edge of the bridge bending over looking into the xiver. Behind each prisoner an
armed guard stood and Mrs. Valderas heard the person behind her pull the trigger at
least twice in an attempt to-.shoot her in the head. He became angry and pushed her
into the river and -she reports hearing shotes fired as she fell, She was able to

swim down the river and take refuge in.the home of a farmer.. ~'Shé remained in hiding
until she filed the Gomplaint. . No further information has been received on the
ountcome of the investigations of this complaint,

50/ See Af32/227, Annex IV,  Her name was not included in the lists of missing
persons of the Vicaria de la Solidaridad or of the International Committee of the
Red Cross.
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B. Persons missing during the period 1974-~-1977

38, With the exception of information on the operatisns »f DINA 1ittle new
information is available concerning persons who disappeared in the years 1974 to
1977, Although it is hoped that the investigations by the special judges :
(ministros en visita) now under. way with regard to some of these cases of missing
persons will provide more compléte information. él/ The report to the General Assembly
contained information on the state of siege applied to Chile, throughout the period
1974=1977, the wide exercise of the President's special powers of arrest and
detention and the creation of the DINA (Direccidn Nacional de Inteligencia) which was
independent of the-Government and directly.responsible only to the Military Junta.
DINA enjoyed secret powers of arrest and had immunity from the court. It was .
dissolved in 1977. Arrests for political and national security reasons during the
period 1974~1977 were numerous and generally carried out without regard to the
established constitutional or legal rules regarding arrest warrants, or notification.
%o family members, 52/ |

39, Becret places of detention were maintained where arrested persons were taken

for interrogation and the laws limiting detention to three official camps were not
observad. Prior to 1974 arrests of persons who subsequently disappeared were carried
out principally by carabinercs or uniformed military personnel as is reflected in the
annex to the report to the General Assembly. 53/ Beginning 1974 arrests of persons
who disappeared were carried out by the DINA and other intelligence services, and
from 1975 to 1977 these arrests were made almost exclusively by the DINA, 2&/
Arrests were made in ways designed to reduce the chance that they would be witnessed,
for example they would take place on the street effectuated by persons dressed in
civilian clothes using automobiles without licence plates., The Vicarfa de la
Solidaridad reported 223 well documentod cases of missing detainees for 1974; 75 such
cases for 19753 111 cases for 1976 snd 12 rases for 1977. While disappearance in
1975 appear to have been indisecriminat~, Church sources in Chile report that in 1974
and early 1975 the focus was on members of the MIR (Movimiento Izquierda
Revolucionaria), that this shifted. during 1975 to the leadership of the Socialist
Party and in 1976 to members of thr Communist Party. In 1977 members of both the
Socialist and Communist parties disappearcd, 22/

1. Cases in 1974

40, In the report to the General.Asseﬁbly“a number of cases were dealt with for the
year 1974 as illustrative of cases ~f missing persons occurring during that year.

A brief mention of those cases follows along with a reference to the relevant case
report contained in document E/CN.4/1381.

(a) The "119" missing persons:

41. Among the persons reported to the Chilean courts as having disappeared.afier -
detention‘in 1974 and early 1975 thr names of "119" subsequently appeared in two

51/ See 4/34/583/Add.1, paras. 38-539.

52/ See A/34/583/Add.1 for 1974, paras. 78-84; for 1975, paras. 95-97; for
1976, paras, 108-111; for 1977, paras. 128-130,

gé/ A/34/583/Add.1, Annex,
54/ Ibia,

55/ See A/34/583/Add.1 for 1974, paras. 78-84; for 1975, paras. 95-97; for 1976,
paras, L08-111l; for 1977, paras., 178-130,
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publications, one in-Brazil -and one in-Argentina, as persons who had been killed
outside Chile, Most are reported to be members of the MIR, On two occasions
detainees in Chilean camps publicized letters in which they stated that persons on -
the 1ist of "119" were seen by them alive under detention by Government seourlty
agencies, The following cases.are representative of the "119",

(1) . -Bdrbara Uribe Tambley and Edwin van Jurick Altamirano, Qé/ Both were
arrested on 10 July 1974 by DINA agents and were subsequently seen in detention by
numerous persons. Van Jurick was a British national and in response to an inquiry
from the British Embassy the Chilean Foreign Ministry reported both were detained.

A year later the Government retracted thet information. The Expert has recently
received information. which confirms the detention at "Villa Grimaldi' of

Bdwin van Jurick, This case is being investigated by the Santiago Special Judge but
no further information has been recelved in- this regard

(11) Martin. Elgueta Plnto, Juan Chacdn. Olivares and Marfa Indés Alvarado Borgel __/
They were arrested by DINA agents on 15 July 1974 and taken with others 16 the
detention centre at 38 Calle Londres. MNumerous persons testified to having seen them
in detention and the authorities acknowledged in writing the detention of Chacdn and
Elgueta. The investigation of this case was suspended and no new information has
been received.

(b) Other 1974 cases

42, The following cases for 1974 were also dealt with in the Expert's report to the
Assembly,

(i) David Silberman Gurovich., 58/ He was taken from the Santiago prison on
4 October 1974 by persons wearing military uniforms, one of whom identified himself
as an Army Lieutenant. Numerous persons have testified to having seen’ Silberman in
various detention centres, The investigation of this case was suspended and no
further 1nformatlon has been received,

(ii) . Guillermo Roberto Beausire Alonso. 22/ He was arrested on 2 November 1974
at Buenos Aires Airport and returned to Cuile where he was ield at various detention
centres, ' Numerous persons have testified to see him in detention and the British
Government — Beausire had British nationality ~ informed the Chilean Government in
1977 that it was firmly and genuinely convinced that DINA was resp0n31ble for ‘
Beau81re s disappearance, -

2. New informstion relating to 1974

43, - Since the report to the General Assembly was prepared the follow1ng new
information has been received on the following cases which were not dealt with in
that report,

__/ A/34/583/Add 1, paras, 86-87 and E/CN 4/1381 Case reports Nbs.'5'and 4
respectively, . : ‘ :

;_/ A/34/583/Add.1, paras., 88~89 and E/Qﬁ.4/1381;VCase report No, 6,
58/ A/34/583/44d.1, paras. 90-92 and E/CN.4/1381, Case report No. 7.
22/ A/34/583/Add.l, paras, 93-94 and E/CN.4/1381, Case report No, 8,
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(a

44, The Ad Hoc “Working Group on Chile received in 1975 a written report concerning
the arrest and disappearance of Alvaro Modesto Vallejos Vlllagran, a case not dealt
with specifically in the reports of the Ad Hoc Working Group or in the Dxpert'
report to the Ceneral Assembly, This report was made by his wife,

tlarfa Lucfs Villavicencio Cristi and reads, in ﬂart ag follows:

g

Arrest and disappearance of Alvaro lModesto Vallejos Villagran

"On Monday, 20 Nhy'1074, at approx1mately 8.30 p m., three 01v111ansA

‘arrived at the house of my parents—in-law, whom we were visiting (Pasaje -
Prat- 3250, Maipd), They identified themselves as members of SIM and were
armed'with'machine guns. They arrested my -husband, claiming that third
parties had named him as 'a member of the Central Committee of MIR and in
possession of dollars used to finance guerillas'!, While they were questioning
the family they made threats, saying thet 'he would not stand up to '
interrogation' because of his physical condition, He was taken away in a |
‘white Chevrolet. (=10 van, handcuffed, with his hands behind his back. None
of the civilians would give his name, Tater, they went to my brother's house.
and questioned my brother and his wife, after which they arrested me, covered

S my eyes with sdotch tape (but badly), and took me away in a white four-doored
twin-cabin van to a house in Calle Londres (No. 38). Inside the house I was
allowed to see my husband, who was handcuffed and blindfolded. They promised
to let me out of the country if my husband 'told them everything he knew',
They then blindfolded me and ook me into a room to interrogate mej; they
humiliated me and struck me several times, all the while threatening me and
insulting me, ILater they took me to my father-in-law's house and left me
there under house arrest ,.. On 29 July, at 7 p.m,, my husband was taken to
ny father—in~law's house and was told that he was free but must cign in at
theé carabineros station in Maipd every three days. After he had been there
“for between 10 and 15 minutes (a great display of vigilance being shown), two
civilians arrived, showed their TIFA (armed forces identity oard) to my
father-in-law and said they were taking my husband away to sign in and would
return. Since that date, they have never returned to provide any information
as to my husband's whereabouts and physical condition. On 15 November, the

. International Red Cross received an official communication signed by

- Colonel Espinoza in which my husband was listed as one of a number of people
in 'Tres Alamos'., When inquiries were made at SENDET in this connexion,:

- Lieutenant Cienfuegos replied that “there must have been a mistake'., On
20 February 1975, in a statement made by four members of MIR on the national
radio and television networks, my husband was referred to as an 'exile', =
When I went to SENDET, I was informed that, in accordance w1th decree Nb 349,
my husband had been releaoed on 29 August 1974 " : '

Marfa ILucfa Villavicencio reports that: two requests for amparo ‘were made on her
husband's behalf and that a criminal complaint was filed with the seventh criminal

court (7° Juzgado del crlmen) 60/ No further information has been received on the
outcome of this complaint,

45, Information concerning vhat might have been the fate of Mr. Vallejos Villagran
is contained in testimony given to a court in the Federal Republic of Germany by
Samiel Enrique Fuenzalida Devia who reports having been an agent of the DINA from
late 1973 to May or early June 1975 Mr. Fuenzalida testified that he had taken a
prisoner named "Loro Matfas" to."Colonia Dignidad". The Ad Hoc Working Group on
Chile had reported that "Colonia Dignidad" was a place of detention of DINA, _w/

60/ Mr, Vallejos Villagran's disappearance was reported by the International
Committee of the Red Cross and the Vicarfa de la Solldarldad See A/52/227,
Amnex LV No. 940,

61/ See for example A/31/253, paras. 196-205.
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The section of Amnesty Internntional for the Federal Republic of Germany reporis that
threugh Mr. Vallejos Villagran g wife and ouherf it has established that "Loro Matfas®
was the name used by Mr. Vallejos Villagran in the MIR, Mr, Iaenza¢1&a s testimony
concerning “Loro Matfas" reads, in part,uas followss §g/

"My first visit to the 'Colonia Dignidad' took place while I was still
employee at the 'Villa Grimaldi' in Santiage. That was in the winter of
1974, that is to say in June/July 1974. That time I was called %o see
Commander Manuel Manrigue. He fold me I waz to accompany an officer to the
south, to 'Los Alemanes!, The officer I had %o accompany was a captain and

- was shortly to be promoted to the rank of major. He belonged to the Army.

" His name was, I believe, Fernendo or Fernandez or scmething like that, We
received orders to go first to Cuatro Alamos, where we were o pick up a’
prisoner in custody there., This prison is located in the City of -Santiagse.
The name of the priscner to be picked up was Loro Matfas, I knew that this

" man was in prison, BEven before his arrest, I had been involved in keeping a
watch on him under DINA's orders., Loro Matfas was the chief of the political
commission of MIR ('Movimiento Izquierda Revolucionario! that means ‘Left
Revolutionary Movement'), DMatfas was the son of a non~commissioned officer
in the Army. In the period after the coup of 1973, hxs father worked in the
Ministry of Defence. The son was a student.

"We picked up Lorc Matfas, handcuffed, at 'Cuatro Alamos'!, He wantsd
to take various personal effects with him, but the major, Fernando ox-
Fernendez or something like that, said to him: 'That is not necessary, you
will not be needing that any more' This last remark by the captain or
ma;or meant that Matfas had no chance of survival., The prisoner was a
complete wreck: he had been tortured, Too much had happened for it to be |
posgsible to set him free again,

BA% the time I lad access in the 'Vills Grimaldi! to the sard index
that was kept for every perscon under observaition or detained., I had to
consult this constantly in comnnexion with my duties, ¥From the card index
I saw that the prisomer Loro Matfas had the word "Puertomont’ entered after
his name, This was a code word, It was used when a prisoner was not %o
survive, A4t the same time this code word meant that the person concerned
was to be eliminated fon landt', I do not know the details of how this was
done, bescause I never killed anybody, Then there wes another additional
code word, the word fMoneda'®, That meant that the person was to be eliminated
by air or by sea - for instance, by being thrown out of a plane or droppsd
into the sea inside a weighted sack.

“From Santlago we took the following route with the prisoner seslts

The witness in his testimony described in detail the youte taken to "Colrnia Dipnidadt
and after this description he continued as follows:

"We then arrived in the car at the entrance gate of our place of
destination, There was a sign which said:. 'No Visitors', or something to
that effect, In front of the gate, which was open, we daw & sky-blue
four-doored private car, a Mbroeﬁes, standing in a sort of parking area, It
was walting for us ,.."

ég/ The testimony is taken from the German language transcript of a public
hearing of the Bonn land Court (mhxrd Civilian Chimber) held on 30 Octobexr 1979
whlch is in the files of the Expert,
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46,

"Further to the situation on arrival at the gate: the captain got out and
went over to the car with the two men, the Germans. For the time being I stayed
in our Chevrolet, The captain spoke in German with the two Germans. ~Then he

" called out to me to bring the prisoner over, So it was not the captain but I

who took the prisoner over to the Mercedes, The prisoner was placed in the
Mercedes. The captain got into- the Mercedes next to him, and inside there

was also the German who was later addressed by the captain as ’Profescor' (but
that was only later, during the meal),

"We then drove away from the gate towards the centre of the settlement.
The Mercedes drove in front and I followed next with the Chevrolet, the second
German from the Mercedes had got in with me; and the orderly's Chevrolet, w1th
the oaptaln s batman in it, followed as the last car in the convdy .." a

) 'The German who sat with me told me where I should leave the car namely
in front of the house which we then entered, but not directly 1n front of 1t
there was a small garden in between ...

: ”The German who had been in the car with me took me and the captaln g
batman into the house. A table was already laid for everybody. When we had
sat down, the captain came in, and the German who had sat with him in" the
Mercedes and whom the captain later addressed as 'Professor! followed a little
later. The 'Professor' brought in with him a black alsatian dog (he had it
with him whenever I saw him), 4As the 'Professor' came in he made a gesture
with his two,arms which I took to mean that the prisoner was dead. 'As he
made this- gesture, which could only mean: 'that's that', 'that's finished!'
or something similar -~ in Spanish one would say 'terminado' - the German
'Professor! uttered a word like: 'Fertig' in German. It is true that I
was not familiar with the word 'fertig' in the German language up to then;
but I understood the word easily in the sense I have just explained, because
of the.'Professor's' gesture, and later, when I heard German spoken, I heard
the word again. No one ever really explained to me the precise meaning of
the German word.'fertig', but later, here in Germany, I found the meaning
which T had attaohed to this word oonflrmed when I 1ooked it up in the
dictionary.

"The gesture which the 'Professor' made did not really surprise me.
It merely confirmed what was to be expected anyway. After all, I already
knew that the prisoner was doomed to die e

”In ‘the convers atlon which fo]lowed during the meal, the 'Professor!
mentioned the chief of DINA, Colonel Manuel Contreras, as an old acquaintance.
He spoke about President Pinoohet in the same way.

"When I returned to- Santiago from the 'Colonla Dignidad' after this trlp
I found that the index card records concerning Loro Matias had already been
removed from the files."

In his;testimbhy Mr, Puenzalida identified by photographs the "Professor" as

Paul Sch&fer whom. the section of Amnesty International of the Federal Republic of
Germany reported:to be the founder and chief of "Colonia Dignidad"., During these
same proceedings Mr, Erick Zott, who reported having been detained at "Villa Grimaldi",
"Colonia Dignidad" and the DINA hospital "Santa Iucfa'" in 1975 identified

Mr, Fuenzalida as one of the DINA agents at "Villa Grimaldi", Mr, Fuenzalida also
testified that he recognized Mr, Zott as having been one of the prisoners at

"Villa Grimaldi" and the "Santa Lucfa" hospital, For information from the Government.
of Chile stating that Mr. Fuenzalida was not a DINA agent see above: paragraph 12,
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(b) Arrest and disappearance of Carlos Alberto Carrasco Matus

47, The files of the Expert contain the following information on the arrest of
Carlos Alberto Carrasco Matus, The latter, a former student leader at the Instituto
Comercial Noi: 5, began his compulsory military service in April 1973 and was assigned
to the Buin Regiment, Santiago. - He was due to complete his two years of military
service on 1 April 1975, Shortly after 11 September 1973, he was transferred to
service at the Cuatro Alamos detention camp run by the Directorate of National :
Intelligence (DINA), On 14 March 1975, a holiday, in front of his parents, brothers
and sisters, he was taken from his home by two DINA officers, with whom he had
worked, The officers said that they had to verify certain statements,  The day after
the arrest, his immediate commanding officer came to his home in order to take away
his service firearm and ammnition., The DINA officer said his name was Anibal Barrera,
and at the request of Carrasco Matus! mother produced papers with the number 8869.

On 28 April 1975 this same person, later identified as Orlando lManzo Durdn, informed
the family that Carrasco Matus had deserted. In a letter dated 6 May 1975 the
Commanding General of the Army Garrison of Santiago informed the parents that
Carrasco Matus was being held at the Santiago Prison.  In amparo and criminal
procedures initiated in this case conflicts in the testlmony on how Carrasco Matus
deserted wexre revealed, These legal procedures gave no results ‘although it is
reported that this case is under investigation by the Special Investlgatlng Judge of
the Santiago Court of Appeals.

48, The Ixpert has recently received information according to which the DINA |
authorities had lost confidence in Carrasco Matus and had placed him in the Tower.
at Villa Grimaldi where he wag killed. Many elements, which the Expert is unable %o
disclose at this time, lead him to believe that this information is exact, This is
one of the cases on which the Government of Chile undertock to provide information

to the United Nations as part of thé agreement between the Government of Chile and

the United Nations by virtue of which the sit—in and hunger-strike at the.Headquarters
of the Economic Commission for Latin America in Santiago in June 1977 éé/ was ended,

3, Cases in 1975

49, TFor the year 1975 the report to the Assembly dealt with the_following cases
selected as illustrative of the period. Reference is made to the relevant case
reports in document E/CN,4/1381,

(a) The eight persons arrested in Valparafso in January 1975 éﬂ/

50, In January 1975 numerous members of MIR were arrested by DINA agents in
Valparalso, held at the Maipo Barracks in that city and transferred on 28 January . 1975
to Villa Grimaldi in Santiago. Among them were eight persons who remain missing..
Many witnéssed have. testified to being detained together with the eight., At first
the DINA and the Ministry of the Interior denied having information on the arrest -of
the eight but subsequently the DINA admitted arresting them but stated they had been
released, The Expert had recently received information which confirms the defention
at Villa Grimaldi of the eight missing persons from Valparafso,  According to this
lnformatlon a decision had been made in February 1975 that they were to be killed,

No information has been received on. the outcome of the judicial -investigation -
undertaken in these cases,

éé/'See A/32/227, paras. 121-123 and E/CN.4/i266,'paraé.'7d-73.
64/ A/34/583/0dd.1, paras. 98~102 and E/CN.4/1381, Case reports Nos, 916,
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(b) Carlos Enrique Lorca Tobar and Modesta Carollna Wiff Sepdlveda 5/

51, Both members of the. SOClallSt Party wexre arrested on 25 June 1974 and taken to a
DINA detention centre in the commune of Bl Quisco, Several witnesses have testified
to being detained with Lorca at Villa Grimaldi. On 30 April 1976 the 1nvest1gat10n
into thls ‘case was suspended and no further 1nformatlon has been received,

(¢) Luis‘Herndn Trejo Saavedra, Alejandro Juan Avalos Dav1dson and
Jogé Ramdn Ascencio Sublabre §§/

52 Tuis HErnén TreJo, a Trade Union Offlclal, was arrested on 15 September 1975 by
" DINA agents, Official written confirmation of his arrest was given to his wife,
Alejandro Avalos, a member of the Communist Party, was ‘arrested on 20 November 1975
after having left the University where he taught, DINA agents had prev1ously told
Unlver31ty ‘authorities that they had orders to arrest Avalos without witnesses. A
number of:former detainees have testified that they were detained at Villa Grimaldi
with Avalos, José Ramén Ascencio, a member of the Communist Party, was arrested on’
29 December 1975 and a number of witnesses have testified to being held with him at
Villa Grimaldi, No further information has been received on the 1nvest1gatlon into
these cases.

4. Cases in 1976

53. For the year 1976 the following cases were dealt with in the report to the
Assembly as illustrative of the disappearances occurring during that period. .
Referenoe is made to the relevan?t case reports 1n document E/CN 4/1381

(a) Flve persons arrested at 1587 Calle Conferencla 67/

54. Five members of the Communist Party were arrested by DINA agents between 4 and

6 May 1976 &t a house lodated at 1587 Calle Conferen01a, Santiago. That house, along
with another house’ belonging to a relative of the tenant of 1587 Calle Conferencla,
had been occupied since 30 April 1975 by DINA agents. Although witnesses have
testified to the arrests and they were reflected in the press, no information has
been received concerning the places at which they were detained, The Government
stated its files showed that two of those arrested had left the country. ‘No further
information ha&-been received in these cases, - , : '

(b) Carlos Humberto Contreras MaluJe éL/

55. A member of the Communlst Party, he was arrested on 3 November 1976 by DINA
agents dr1v1ng ‘the official car of the Chief of Chilean Air Force Intelligence,
Numerous- persons witnessed the arrest including an officer of the Carabineros and
the -Santiago Court of Appeals, concluding that the DINA had arrested Contreras lMaluje,
ordered his release, The Ministry of the Interior dld not comply. The investigation

65/ A/34/583/A44. 1,vparas.'1o5-1o4; and see E/CN.4/1381, Case report No. 17.

*_/ A/34/583/Add 1, paras. 105—107, and see4£VCN 4/1381 Case report No, 18
(Avalos Davidson). :

61/ A/34/583/h3d.1, paras. 112-114 and see E/CN.4/1381, Case reports Nos. 19-21,
68/ 4/34/583/844.1, paras. 115-118, and see E/CN.4/1381, Case report No, 22- -~
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in Chile on this case has been suspended and no further information in this regard

has been received, -In its annual.report to the 1979 session of the General Assembly
of the Organization of American States, the Inter—American Commission on Human Rights
declared that it had in its possession "unequivocal proof of the fact that

Mr, Carlos Humberto Contreras Maluje was illegally detained by agents of the Government
of Chile on 3 Nbvember 1976 and since that time has dlsappeared” éﬁ/

;(o) Vlctor‘Manuel Diaz Lépez 70/

56, Secretary-General of the Communlst Party, he was arrested on 12 May 1979 by
agents of the DINA. The arrest was witnessed by two persons and reflected in the
press, A Jjudicial investigation was reportedly under way but no further information
has been received,

(d) Marta Lidia Ugarte Romdn 71/

57. A member of the Communist Party, she disappeared on 9 August 1976 and in
September 1976 her mutilated body was found on a beach about 182 km from Santiago,
A witness testified to having been detained at Villa CGrimaldi with Marta Ugarte,
Legal proceedings were reportedly under way in this case but no further 1nformatlon
has been received. :

(e) Thirteen persons who disappeared in November-—December 1976-12/

58. Thirteen persons were reported to have been arrested and to have disappeared in
November~December 1976, Most were known as members of the Communist Party and one
was a member of the Central Committee of that Party., In most of the thirteen cases
persons reported witnessing the arrest of the missing individual, The Government
reported that eight of the thirteen had left the country. However, a subsequent
investigation showed that the border station records had been altered to show that
the eight had left Chile, A judicial investigation was under way in this case but
no information has been received on its outcome, : :

5. New information relating to 1976

59. Since the report to the General Assembly was prepared the follow1ng new
information relatlng to 1976 has been received.

(a) Discovery of a humber of badly decomposed and mutilated bodies in 1976 73/

60, The Ad Hoc Working Group on Chile reported that in 1976 a number of badly
decomposed male and female bodies had been found in Chile. These bodies showed
bullet wounds, and the faces had been disfigured and the fingers severed. Reports
had linked these discoveries with a DINA detention centre and the Ad Hoc Working
Group reported expressions of concern in the Chilean Press and by the Catholic.
Church. Z&/ The Government of Chile, in this regard, reported to the Commission on

69/ Annual Report of the Inter—American Commission on Human Rights; document
OEA/Ser P, AG/doc. 1101/79 dated 5 October 1979,

19/ 4/34/583/8d4.1, paras, 119-120 and see E/CN,4/1381, Case Report No, 23, =
71/ 4/34/583/Add.1, paras, 121-123 and see E/CN.4/1381, Case Report No. 24.

72/ A/34/583/hdd,1, paras. 124-127 and see E/CN.4/1381, Case reports Nos., 25-37.
73/ 1/34/583/Add.1, para. 110,

74/ B/ON.4/1221, paras. 144-145,
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Human Rights that three corpses had been found, one belonging to Marta Ugarte, one
to a delinquent named Jolio Moisés Leal Céspedes and the other to a woman who had
drowned. 12/

61. On 13 November 1979 Lawyers of the Vicarfa de la Solidsridad presented to the
special investigating judge (Ministro en visita) charged with investigating the

cases of missing persons occurring in the Santiago area, information on the discovery
of bodies in that area in 1976, According to press reports, investigations by the
Vicarfa's lawyers showed that fourteen bodies, thirteen male and one female, were
found in the Maipo River between 1 June and 7 October 1976, The condition of five

of the bodies was described as follows:

"Naked, with their hands and feet bound with wire ..., with the fingers
severed at the joints (in some cases, the autopsy revealed that the fingers
had been sawn off) «vey hands and feet tied behind the back, placing the
body in a strange position with the legs bent backwards ... none with bullet
wounds,"

Two other bodies were found to have bullet wounds and one of them, the hands of which
had not been cut off, was identified as belonging to an Air Force soldier who
disappeared in May 1976 four months after requesting a discharge. 76/

62, It is reported that in 1977 the prosecutor charged with investigating three of
these cases decided to treat them together because,

"it is impossible to ignote certain striking coincidences, and the three
cases are curiously linked with, or at least have some connexion with, the
case of the disappeared persons about which so much has been heard in so
many connexions and in so many organs',

This same prosecutor wrote in connexion with one of the bodies, that of a woman
without hands who had a sack tied to her belt:

"She had been poisoned, bound, mutilated and then thrown into the water.
This shows that the murderer or murderers were intent on eliminating her
at all costs and wanted to be quite sure that the corpse could not be
identified, 1Is this one of the victims in question, one of the persons
sought. but not found? The courts do not have enough information to pass
Jjudgement, nor have they any way of obtaining such information or finding
answers fo all these questions."” B

The prosecutor charged with the investigation regarding the case of the Air Force
soldier, reportedly wrote:

"It is a pity that no one was asked, not even by the press, to identify the
body; it is well known that complaints have been made with regard to the
disappearance of persons,"

In the case of this Air Force soldier, no expert examination was ordered of the
bullets found in his body. 77/

15/ E/CN.4/1247/Add.1, Paxt II, Chapter IV; 2,
Z§/ Hoy, 21-27 November 1979. See also El Mercurio, 15 November 1979.

77/ Ivid.
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63. In the report to the special judge the lawyers for the Vicarfa revealed official
confirmation that in 1976 a DINA centre of operations was located in "El Cajdn del
Maipo" vhich was known as the house of stone (casa de piedra). Z§/ No further
information on the outcome of the special judges investigation has been received,

(b) The case of Carmelo Soria BEspinoza

64, The Ad Hoc Working Group on Chile reported on the disappearance on 14 July 1976
of Mr. Carmelo Soria Espinocza a staff member of the United Nations Economic Commission
for Latin America and the discovery on 16 July 1976 of his body some distance from

his wrecked automobile, The circumstances suggested his death was neither an accident
nor suicide., Prior to 11 September 1973 Mr. Soria worked in an official publishing
house and the wife of Mr, Soria testified that prior +to his disappearance they had
been under DINA surveillance and that colleagues of Mr., Soria had been arrested and
guestioned about him. A judicial investigation was initiated and-the Government

of Chile informed the Ad Hoc Working Group that, from the existing information, it

was clear that an accident was involved. 12/ According to Chilean newspaper reports,
the Santiago Court of Appeals in December 1979 confirmed a decision by the Third
Criminal Court (Tercer Juzgado del Crimen) that temporarily suspended the
investigation, According to these reports the judge concluded that Carmelo Soria

had been murdered but that it was impossible to identify the persons responsible, §£V

6. Cases in 1977

65. The report to the General Assembly dealt with the following two cases selected
as illustrative of those occurring in 1977.

(a) Vicente Israel Garcfa Ramirez, §l/ A member of the Socialist Party, he was
arrested together with his wife on 30 April 1977 in the town of San Fernando by
persons identifying themselves as from the Bureau of Investigations. They were taken
to an unknown place of detention where several persons state they saw or heard

Garcfa Ramirez, No further information has been received on the results of a judicial
investigation in this case initiated following a criminal complaint,

(b) Jorge Andrés Troncoso Aguirre, §g/ He was arrested in Santiago on 11 May 1977
and two persons, who subsequently were transferred to the DINA detention centre
Cuatro Alamos, testified to having been with Troncoso in an unknown place of
detention, Testimony of one of those persons indicates Troncoso died while being
tortured. A criminal complaint was filed in this case but no information has been
received on its outcome,

Ibid.,

A/31/253, paras. 194-195, E/CN,4/1221, paras. 160-167.

la Tercera, 7 December 1979. El Mercurio, 3 December 1979.
A/34/583/Ad4,1, paras. 131-132 and see B/CN,4/1381, Case report No, 38.
A/34/583/Add.1, paras, 133~135 and see E/CN.4/1581, Case report No. 39.

REEEER
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II. WOMEN WHO DISAPPEARED AT A TIME WHEN THEY WERE PREGNANT AND CHILDREN
BORN IN DETENTION

66. ,The Association of Relatives of Missing Detainees has expressed to the Expert
deep concern about the women who had been arrested while pregnant and who
subgequently disapveared. They expressed concern both for the women- themselveg
and thelr unboyn children and referrved to the discovery in Chile of two children,
Ana Lucia and Anatole Boris Julian Grissona vho had been arrested with their
parents in Buenos Aires in September 1976 and whose parents remain missing. . The
Agsociation truﬂSMltted 1arormatlon and requested an urgent investigation of the
follow1ag cases

A, Maria Cecilia Labrin Sazo

Identity cards 16,é85 of ?rovidencia
Date of birxth: 15 May 1949
Age: 25 at time of arrest
' Maritai gtatuss Single
Domicile: Letadia 4301. Los Condes, Santiago

Occupation: Social worker. Employed as social worker at CORVI,
until December 197%. Employed by a firm named Hucke
at the time of her arrest.

Circumstances of arrest:

This person, who was an active member of the Revolutionary Left
Movement (MIR), was arrested at her home by officials of the security
agencies at about 10 p.m. on 12 Auvgust 1974. The abductors were
three persons in plain clothes who claimed to be investigators from CORVI.
They asked her to go with them for a short vwhile, to which she agreed,.
in spite of being one-and-a-half months pregnant and not in good health
for this reason. Her pregnancy has been medically and legally certified
and attested. ~ '

In October 1974 her mother was informed unofficially that
Maria Cecilia was at the Chilean Air Force Academy and in February 1975
she learned by the same means that her dgughter was in the incommunicado
section of "Ires Alemos” (now known as "Cuatro Alamos"). Both these
items of information were duly brought to the attention of the courts.

A person who did not identify himgelf reported that Maria Cecilia
Labrin Sazo had been taken to a hospital for a pregnancy check-up in
veptember 1974 and there is also information to the effect that
Maria Cecilia did in fact have her baby, and that it was a girl and its
weight was given.  The day and month given as the date of blrth coincided
exaotly with the ninth month of orcqnanCJ (5 March). '

lhe nartlculars of thls case vere beUﬁhb to the attention of tho
Chilean Minister of the Interior on 4 Qctober 1978. _/

l/ This case is reported in Volume 6, Case No. 349 of the publication
"Dénde estan'.
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B. Gloria Ester Lagos Nilsson
't Identity cards 4,332;602'5f Santiago

Marital status: tarried |
Date of birth: 29 feptember 1945:‘
Age: 28 years at tifie of arrest
Domicile: Poblacidén La Sierra C. Block 13, Depto. 34 de Santiago
Occupations Secretary

Circumstances of arrest:

She was arrested on 27 August 1974 at her home in the presence of
her son, Héctor Meza Lagos, then 10 years old, and her cmployee. At the
time of her arrest, she was one-and-a~half months pregnant and this fact
vas brought to the attention of the courts. Her disappearance was
reported by the International Committec of the Red Cross and the
Vicarfa de la Solidaridad. 2

C. Cecilia Miguelina BojanicuAbad
Idéhtity éard: 6,360,887 of-Santiago
 Marita1‘statué: ﬁarried
A_Daté of birth: 7 May 1951
Ages ' ! 23 at time of arrést

Domicile: Paraguay 1340, Paradero 22 de Santa Rosa, Comuna de
La Granja, Santiago, Chile

Occupationt Secretaxry of ”Saﬁdoz Farmacéutica Ltda." from 1970 to
1975, At the time of her arrest she-was worklng as a
hougevife as she was four months pregnant.

Circumstance of arvrest:

Cecilia was arrested, together with her one-and-a-half year old son
Leonardo Oyarztn Bojanic, at her home on 2 October 1974, at about 6 p.m.
by two armed individuals. They took her from her home to that of her
sister Ximena Carolina Bojanic, where they arrested her husband,

Flavio Arquimides Oyarzin Soto.  The one-and-a-half year old child was
brought back the same day but his parents are still missing.

There is testimony that the counle were in the secret place of
detention Inown as "José Domingo Cafias" and also in the incommunicadg .. ..

section of "Tres Alamos" (now lmown as "Cuatro Alamos"). Tt is known
that when Cecilia was in the latter place a doctor of the section gave her |
a pregnancy check-up. In mid-October the couple werc taken away from

"Cuatro Alamos" to an unknown destination. The baby was due to haVe been
born about March 1976, according to 1egallj attested medical evidence.-

2/ See A/32/207, Annex IV, No. 464
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The testimony and texts referred tc which confirm the arrest of the
person concerned and her condition at the time have been introduced as
evidence in the abduction proceedings brought before the
Fourth Departmental Criminal Court in Santiago.  The Minister of the
Interior has been in possegsion of the complete file on this case since
24 August 1978. 3/

Jacqueline Paulette Drouilly Yurich

Identity card: 205,565 of Temuco
Marital status: Married

Date of birth: 3 December 1949

Age: 24 at time of arrest
Domicile:  Decombe llQl,(Providencia, Santiago
Occupation: Social Science student at the Univergity of Chile

Circumstances of arrest:

Jacqueline was arrested on tlhie night of 30 October 1974, at her home
at 1191 Decombe, by agents in plain clothes who indicated they were from
the DINA and that they were looking for her husband Marcelo Salinas Eytel.
She was taken away that night and they stayed to wait for her husband.

He arrived by taxi at about 7 a.m. the following morning, at which time
he wvas arrested. At the time of arrest Jacqueline was three months
pregnant and her child was due to be born in April 1975. Both
Jacqueline Drouilly and her husband, Harcelo Salinas, have been missing
since the timé of their arvest and their names appear in the "list of 119"
pergong reported killed outside Chile. é/ -

Ti:ig case was reported by the International Committee of the
Red Cross and the Vicarfa de la Solidaridad. 5/

Michelle Pefla Herreros
Harital status: Single

Date of birth: 27 July 1947

Nationality: . Spanish

Age: v{_ . 27 at time of arrest

Domiciles | Gélvei 145, Santiago (last fixed address)
Occupations | Engineering student at UTE

This case is reported in Volume 5; case No. 245 of the publication

"Donde Egtan".
A/ See above chapter I, B, 1.(a).
5/ See A/32/227, Annex IV No. 263.
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Circumstances of arrest:

She was arrested on 28 June 1975, at Poblacién Tas Rejas, vhere she
occasionally staycd at that time. There is evidence that she vas
detained in Villa’ F:lma101. AL the time of her arrest che vas

eight—-and-a~half months pregnary. Unofficially it is lkmown that
lichelle gave birth to her child who was talken from her, according to
information from & detainec vho wag at Ville Grimaldi and .who heard
Michelle persistently shouting "Let me see my child", The fact that
she was pregnant is knovm to the courts through the legal action taken
on her behalf, and all information on. this case was sent to the
Ch;lean Mlnlster of the Iqterior on 5 July 1978. §/

T,  Halvia Rosa Hena Alvarado’

Identity card: 7,688,548 of Santiago
liarital status: llarried

Date of birth: 26 August 1955

Age: 20 at time of arrest
Domicile: Cantares de Chile 6271 (paradero 16 de Santa Rosa)
Occupations Houscuife

Circumstances of arrest:

Nalvia Rosa was arrested on 29 April 1976, shortly after 7.30 p.m.
vhen, together with her two-and-a-half year old son, she vas returning
to her home with her husband, Luis Tmilio Recabarren Gonzdlez, and his
brother, Hanuel Guillermo Recabarren Gonzédlcez. She had gone to meet her
husband at his place of work. The three of them wvere arrested as they
were going home and a corpulen: man (vho got out ~f a taxi) left the
child some blocks away from his home. He was found crying by neighbours
who informed the fanily. Welvia Rosa was tuvo to three months pregnant
at the time of her arrest and the child wvas due to be born in
September 1976.

Nalvia Rosa, her husband, Luis Dmilio Recabarren, his brother,
Hanvel Guillermo Recabarren, and their father, Manuel Segundo Recabarren

Rojas, have been missing since 1970.

On 12 July 1978 the completc file relating to the disappearance of
these persons was delivered to the Chilean linister of the Interior.

G. Reinalda del Cormen Pereira Plaza

Mrs, Pereira Plaza, an active member of the Communist Party, was

arrested on 16 December 1976 while retuming home from a medical visit .

connected with her pregnancy of mpbroxlmately six months. Her\chlld
the first, was due to have been born in Merch or April 1977. A detailed

é/ The case ic reported in Volume 1, case lio. 4% of the publication
"Dénde Dstdn".

1/ This case is reported in volume 2, case No. 61 of the publication
"Dénde Istdn".
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account of this case ig found in E/CHQ4/1581, case report No. 33.
The information concerning this case was transmitted to the Chilean Minister
of thQ Interior on 27 October 1978. ’

67. Concern over the situation of women vho disanpeared while pregnant, the fate
of children born during secret detention and the failure to place those children
in the custody of their legitimate family members igs reflected in fthe report of
the Inter—American Commission on Human Rights to the Cencral Assembly of the
Organization of American States at its ninth session_g/ and in a resolution
adopted by that General Asgembly which reads, in part, '

"That disappearances in certain countrics have particularly affeccted the
well-being of c¢hildren, whether born to women who have 'disappeared' vhile
pregnant or abducted along with their parents - o method of repression which
in the view of the Commission is crucl and inhumane." 2/

,§/ Annual Report of the Inter-imerican Commission on Human Rights.
Document OEA/SCR. P AG/doc. 1101/79 dated 5 October 1979, Section Two, Part II.

Q/ Resolution entitled "Annual Report of the Inter-American Commission on
Human Rights", document OREA/SCR. 1/V/II, 48 doc. 6.
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ITI. ROLE OF TDIVIDUALS, PRIVATE ORGANIZATIONS, THD PRESS, THD GOVERMIENT AND
THE JUDICIARY IN THE DISAPPEARANCE OF PERSONS IN CHILE

A, Role of individuals and private organizations

68. The report o the General Assembly contained information on the efforts of
private persons and organizations in Chile tc obtain the release or determine the
whereabouts or discover the Tate of detainecs vwho haed disappeared. ;/ ‘During the
period covered by the presont report relatives of the missing persons on an
individual basis, the Association of Reolatives of Ilissing Persons and the

Vicarfia de la Solidaridad continucd their actions, generally before the courts,

to determine the vhereabouts or fate of The missing persons. These activities
are reflected above, in Chapter I of thig report. The persons involved in these
activities report that they continue to ecncounter difficulties. The Association of
Relatives of lMissing Detainces in a public statement dated 7 November 1979 stated
that "we relatives are consitantly the victims of acts which Jjeopardize our
personal safety and peace of mind, the clear purposc of these acts being to hinder
the defence of and search for our arrested and missing relatives."  Particular
reference was made to the death threat they received from "Comando Carevic', the
continuous surveillance to which they are subjected and the threatening telephone
calls they received. The statement called attention to the attack which took
place on 4 November 1979 against Gala Torres Aravena, brother of Ruperto Torres
Aravena, missing since October 1973, vhich resulted in serious injury to him.

The Agsociation also reports that the members of the Association who travelled
from Santiago to Yumbel for the funeral service of the missing nersons from Laja,
see above Chapter I, were followed from Hantiago by police, illegally arrested by
carabineros at the town of Talca, searched, guestioned, threatened, their
identities recorded and held four hours before being released.

B. Role of the press

69. The report to the Assembly reflects the failure of the Chilean mass media to
report accurately on the reliable evidence of the disanvearance of detainees which
existed in Chile after September 1973, which was certainly a factor vhich permitted
the disappearancos to continue, and the ~hange in attitude »f the press in 1978
which then began to admit that the problcamns of missing persons did exist. g/ In
the period covered by the present report the vress in Chile has given increascd
coverage to the developments concerning missing persons, the finding of graves, the
results of speciel investigations, as is reflected in Chapter I of this report,

and this is a welcomed development zrhich can contribute to public support for the
continuation of the investigation into the fate of migsing persons.

. Role of the Government

70. Since September 1973 all constituent, legislative and executive authority
in Chile has been concentrated in the Govermment Junta, comvosed of the chiefs
of the Army, Nevy, Air Force and Carabineros. The armed services and the various
government ministries operate under the Junta's authority. j/ This oresent report

1/ A/34/53%/Add.1, para. 144.
g/ Ibid., para. 145.
3/ Ibid., para. 146.
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and the report to the General Assembly show that duving the weriod from

11 September 197% to. the beginning of the operation of the DINA in the first half
of 1974 asgencies under the authority of the Government Junta, principally the o
military services and the carabineros, and their intelligence units, arrested

" a large numoey or persong who were connected with the prior govermment or vho
were suspected o' suovporting thet governnent or of being o1posed to the seizure
of power by the Military. This included members of the Socialist party, trade
unionigts and peasant lcaders. The formalities of obtaining arrest varrants or
of keeping lists of vnrisoners vere not observed and, as now appears . clearly, many
of these persons were ryewoved from their places of doten ion by the military oxr
carabineros and killed,. é/ :

7. The report to the General Assembly showed that the involvene nt of the
Government of Chile in the disavpcarance of vpersons dlrlng the neriod beginning .
with the creation of DINA was twofold; firsht in the ecstablighment of an
organization independent of the Govermment, depending directly on the Government
Junta and in particular the Presicent of Chile, vhich had its ovm secret powers of
arrest and detention and whose activities and personnel were made immune from the
courts of Justice. Secondly, the Govermment of Chile, that is the Government Junta,
ig involved in so far as it did not reguire the DINA in its operations to observe
lawvs concerning the requirement of a written arrest warrant, limitation on the
authorized places of detention, time limits on detention and prohibiting
ill~treatment of detainees. Q/

The DINA and missing persons

12. 'Information which has recently become available sheds increascd light on the
structure and operations of the DIITA and on the fate of the persons detained by
DINA and who renain missing. Thig information makes worthwhile a closer look at
DINA and its activities. The Directorate of National Intelligence was officially
stablished by Decree--Lawv No. 521 of 18 June 1974 and was the succeggor of a

commission known as DIHA egtablished in Movember 1973. ;/ It was a miliftary organ
of professional, technical character responsible directly to the Government Junta
headed by =z gV::;;l or & hl“h«f&ﬂkln” officer of the National Defence IForces in

active seerce._j/ Iis tmfw consisted of personnel assigned or seconded to it
by the Institutions of 1 atlol Defence (Army, Navy, Air Force, Carabineros) and

the Investigations service and personncl not belonging to those services nlrectlJ
engaged by the DINA, “/A DINA vas also entrusted with powers of arrest and
detention. vhich, however, were kept secret. ;y Tlogt of the staff of DINA was

composed of persomncl recruited from the armod services, carabincros or

Investigation servicas. 10/ lir. Puenzalida, in his testimony to the Bonn Court, ll/
stated tiat his transfer from his Ariy unit to the DA, such decisions he said

were based on personal qualificavions, wasg the result of a military order which

could not be refused. ‘he ronert to the Agserdly dealt in detail with the

=

A/ See chapier I of the prasen

5/ 4/34/583/Add.1, para. 143.

§/ Decree-Lav Wo. 521, articles T and II. See A/10285, anney XVI for
articles 1 %o 8 and T/CY.4/1221, para. 194 for articles 9 to 1l.

»Z/ Articles 1 and 2, Ibid.,
8/ Articles 3 and 5, Thid.,
9/ Article 10, Ibid.,
10/ 4/31/253, para. 345.
11/

See above para. 12.

report and A/%4/583/Add.1, para. 147.
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immunity of the DINA from the Chilean courts and the Director of DINA's refusai,
in fulfilment of orders of the President ef Chile, -te- provide information to
Chilean courts on detainces. 12/ :

7%. The following information on the operations. of DINA-is based vnrincipally on
the two sources of information, the Bonn Court testimony and information from the
source closcly conneeted with the Bxecutive Braneh of the Chilean Goveérnment,
described in the introduction to thisg report. ;é/ The organizational structure of
the DINA (see page_j&) consistec of the DIOTA General Headquarters at Santiago; the
Metropolitan Intelligence Brigade (Brigada de Inteligencia Metronolitana) BIM;

and similar intelligence brigades for the arecas outside metropolitan Santiago.

74, DINA General Headquarters,-with its Director; then Col. Manuel Contreras and
his staff was located in buildings on tlarcoleta Street. and Vicufla Ilackenna Avenue
in Santiago. It contrelled the activities of the DINA throughout Chile and in
foreign countries and maintained relations with the intelligence scrvices of other
States. DINA, according to Decree~Law No. 521 was resvonsible directly to the
Government Junta and the Director of DINA, in a statement to the Santiago Court of
Appeals referred to his obligations "to comply strictly with the orders of the
President of_thp_ﬁgpphl;chnlé/_u DINA General. Headqvﬂrterc alsgso. trangmitted the
information it deemed appropriate to the Ministry of the Interior, SENDET and other
government devartments.

75. The BIM which was located at "Terranova', the code name for Villa Grimaldi,

had its own headquarters with a commander and deputy commander and units dealing
with logistic, transporfation and the guard for Villa Grimaldi. Interrogation

teams were also asgigned to the BI headyuarters. BRI Headguarters controlled

four groups, each with its own code narie. One of these groups specialized in
investigating the MIR, one specialized in the Communist Party, onc in the

Socialist Party and the fourth was charged with investigating political or national
security matters which did not fall under the competcnce of the other three groups.
Pach group was made up of a commander and hls as 51stant and qbovt thlrtJ othor agents
divided into subgroups of fivet ' : :

76. The BT, as was mentioned ahove, and the commanders and assistant commanders.of.
BM's four grovps vere located at Villa Grimaldi. The remaining staff members of
the four groups wvere assigned to other DIUA offices, houses of detention, etc.,
throughouvt Santiago. Among the vplaces of detention uvnder DINA control.in the
Santiago area weres ’ : ‘ h

~ Cuatro Alqmou, the 1ncommunloado sectlon of Tros Alamos,

- House at No. 98 Tondon | Ctreet

- Houseo on- Josc DOMln”O Canas Lreeu (Mos. 1367 qnd 13ﬂ7),

- House on Ifan utrneb av tho corner of Loe Platanos Street;

~ Hduses on Belgrade Strect and Viciifia Mackennas

-~ "Rinconada de Medipo'y former university agrioulturai estate.

Medical and dental care was given to DINA personnel and to detainees at a clinic
on Santa Imcfa Street. Detainees were held on the uppermost floor of the building.

12/ A/34/583/Add.1, paras. 148-149.
;j/ See above, paras. 11-12.
14/ A/34/533/Mdd.1, para. 148.
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STRUCTURE OF DINA
Santiago Metropolitan Area
GENERAL HEADQUARTERS
Director: - - Col. Contreras
Deputy Director: ;/
Staff
External Relations
Location: Marcoleta/Vicufia Mackenna
Order of the Day ,
(Orden del Dia) Dall%\Report
B
METROPOLITAN INTBLLIGENCE BRIGADE
Commander: l/
Deputy Commander: 1/
N . . ) c Guards of
Loglvthu:‘ Interrogation Transportatlonl Villa Crimaldi
Location: '"Terranova' - Villa Grimaldi
Order of the Day Daily Report Consultations
(Orden del Dia) N
N
GroupI"A" _ Group'"B" Group‘”C” Group‘”D”
Specialist in i;Specialist in | Specialist in Other questions
Communist Party iSocialigt Party MIR
Commander: 1/ llcommanderz 1/ Commanders 1/ Commander: 1/
Assistant: | jAssistant: Assistants 1/ Agsistant: 1/
Loc.Villa Grimaldis‘Loc.Villa Grimgldil |Loc.Villa Grimaldil |Loc.Villa Grimaldi

| | | |

Sub-groups Sub-groups Sub-groups Sub-groups
000 00000 ODO000 00000
Loc. Houses, Loc. Houses, Loc. Houses, Ioc., Houses,

Offices, in Offices, in Offices, in Offices, in
Santiago Santiago Santiago Santiago

;/ Regarding information on the identities of these persons see para. 817
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77. The activities of the DINA in the provinces outside metropolitan Santiago were
organized under -a - SJstem analogous to that in placé for Santiago

78. The operatlonu of tho DINA gystem were controlled through an "Order of the
Day™ (Orden,del Dia), a daily report to DINA General Headquarters on the
activities of BIi, and the "Libro de Guardia" of offices and detention places.
Bach day the BT received.an "Order of the Day" from DINA General Headquarters Uthh
contained detalled instructions for the activities of BN, including the
disposition of prisoners Thig "Order of the Day" was in turn transmitted to the
commanders of the four groups making up the BIMT. Also each day a repoxrt on the
day's activities and events was transmitited from the four groups.to the BI{ and
then to DINA General Headquarters. - This daily report included information on the
effect given to the oxders contained in the previous day's "Order of the Day" and
the state.and disposition of prisoners. A%t Villa Crimeldi a "Libro de Guardia
was maintained in which each entry and exit from the Villa was registered. The
arrival of prisoners, the person bringing them and the group resvonsible for the
prigoner was recorded in the "Libro de Guardia" which also reflected missions by
DINA agents outgide the Villa.  The "Libro de Guardia" was checked by the -
Commander of BT, signed and sent to DINA Ceneral Headguarters. The BIM »lso
maintained a card index of names containing thc names and the details of personal
identity of persons under .dectention, persons under surveillance, or persons whose
names were developed during the interrogation of prisoners. Copies of the
trangscripts of the interrogations of detained persons were algso included in this
file.

79. Arrests could be made by DIMA agents on their own 1nltlat1vo, on orders from
the group commanders, the BIT or DHIA General Headquarters. Ingtructions were .
given to DINA agents to make arrests in circumstances which would reduce the
possibility of the arrest being witnessed. Prigsoners brought to Villa Grimaldi
were registered in the "Libro de Guardia! and placed in one of the holding c=lls. lﬁ/
Interrogation was carried out on orders from the BT and DINA General Headquarters
which included the subjects on which the prisoner was to be questioned. Prior to
interrogation prisoners were generally tortured without being gquestionecd in an
operation knovn as "softening up'" designed to make them willing to respond
“truthfully when guestioned. It is reported that an unknown number of persons died
as a direct result of ftorture, although instructions had been given not to let it
"get out of hand". In these caseg the disposal of the body was the responsibility
of the group to whom the vnrisoncr was charged, although the exact. place of the
burial was decided by the BIM and DINA Genhral Headquarters. In other instances’
persons were deliberately killed in Villa Grimaldi, as was the case of

Carlos Alberto Carrasco Matus described above (see paras. 47- 48)

80, PFor those prisoners who did not die during 1nterrogations and were not
deliberately killed in Villa- Grimaldi decisions were made on their fate vhich were
transmitted to BIM in the Order of the Day. It would appear that such decisions
were based on the consultations of the group commanders and the BIM commander and
the 1nformatlon transmitted by them to DINA General Headquarters. Persons were not
generally released directly from Villa Grimaldi but trangferred to Cuvatro or

Tres Alamos. . - According to the informatior received the deeision that a prisoner
was to be killed was generally reflected in his being removed from the detention
cells and placed in the Tover on the grounds of Villa Grimaldi together with other
persons who were to die, They were thus isolated from the prisoners being

15/ See report of fthe Ad Hoc Vorking Group on Chile. A/55/331;-paras. 305-309
and Annex XXXII. :
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interrogated and those destined to be transferred to an officially recognized place
of detention. However, in a few cages versons who were to be killed and had been
placed in the Tower were removed from the Tover and eventually released. Some of
the elements which entered into the decigion to transfer or to kill a prisoner
appear to have been that the person had suffered serious-and lasting physical"
defects as a result of torture and that his arrest had been witnessed or not; that
he had or had not co-operated with the DINA during interrogation. Persons placed
in the Tower were removed at night in trucks, at times as many as 20, and code words
wvere used to indicate if they would be eliminated on land (”Puentomont") or by
being throwm into the sea ("Moneda'). These details were determined by

DINA General Headquarters. After a person had been eliminated the individual
identity file card of the dead person in the BIM files was removed and the only
trace of that person's fate would, according to the information received, appear

to be in the daily reports sent to DINA General Headquarters and in records kept
there. : : .

81, The BExpert has received information on the persons who were responsible for

the various organizational units of the DINA during given pericds and of persons
directly implicated in the deaths of detainees. The Dxpert has decided to keep
thig information confidential at this time in order to protect the safety of the
sources of that information and because the greatest benefit from that information
would come from co-operation between the Government of Chile and the United Nations
with a view to determining the fate of migsing persons and in the identification and
punishment of those responsible for the disappearance of detainees as is recommended
in the conclusions.

82. The report to the General Assembly dealt with other aspects of the role of

the Government of Chile in missing persons. It noted that the Government rarely
faced up to the evidence in international reworts which showved that missing persons
had been arrested and detained by government agents and the report to the Assembly
“treated the contradictory and false information submitted to the United Wations by
the Chilean Government. It remains clear that the adoption by the Government of

a more positive approach to the substance of international concern with missing
persons might well have contributed to climinating the problem at an early stage. 16/
The report to tho General Assembly also ‘ealt wvith the lacl: of co-operation with
current court investigations into missing persons by military authorities ;1/ and
with the amnesty decree of April 1978 vhich has, in at lcast one case, blocked the
punishment of carabincros responsible for killing persong who had been reported
missing. ' In this regard, the report to the Assembly reflected the position that
the Amnesty could not legally be applied to crimes resulting from gross and
systematic violations of human rights because of the international legal
responsibilities of Chile. 18/

83. The report to the Assembly also dealt with proposals made by the Chilean
Government that would have shortencd from five to two years the period of absence.
after wvhich a missing person could be declared legally dead. The relatives of
the missing persons rejected this approach because the presumptions of death based
on prolonged absence applied only to circumstances in which.the whereabouts or fate
of a person vere not knoun. They. argued that in the case of Chile the missing
persons had heen arrested by government agents and held in places of detention known
to the Government which thus was able to give answers on their fate. ;2/ It should

16/ A/34/58%/add.1, paras. 151-152.
» ;l/ Ibid., para. 153.

l§/ Tbid., paras. 155-156.

;2/ Ibid., para. 157.
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be noted that the international convention adopted to regulate the issuance of
declarations of death of persons missing during Vorld Var IT, with its massive
destruction and displacement of populations and orsanized killings of minorities,
required, as a condition to the igsvance of a declaration of death, a court enquiry
into the circumstonces of the disappearance of the missing nerson vhich had to
"afford reasonable ground to infer that the missing person dicd in consequence of
events of war or of racial, religious political or national persccution'. 20/ Tt
is clear that the application of this principle to missing persons in Chilec would
lead to the identification of the places of detention involved, the persons
responsible- and possibly the exact whereabouts of the missing persons, and that

no "presumption" as to the person's fate world be necessary. The compensation of
victims of the disappearancc of detainces in Chile, as the report to the Assembly
maintains, depends first on the detormination of their fate and the identification
of those responsible. At that time the legal and moral responsibility of the
State to compensate victims for illicit acts attributable to it comes into
operation. gl/ :

D, Role of the Judiciary

84. The report to the General Assembly showed that the remedy of amparo if applied
according to the terms of the Constitution and laws of Chile would be an important
instrument for the protection of the liberty and security of persons. A Chilean
judge vhen seized with a request for amparo is, according to the Constitution,
empovered to addrcss himself directly to the person holding another in detention,
to order that the detaince be brought before him, and to order the detainee's
release. The judge may also visit the place of detention and he is empowered to
pursue the question of the criminal liability of thosec violating the law in matters
of detention. 22 However, as the report to the Assembly shous, the Chilean
judiciary refused to apply the remedy of amparo according to the terms laid dowm
in the Constitution and laws in the casc of persons held by the DINA or the
military avthorities. The Courts in most cases refused to address themselves
directly to the organ holding the detainec, for ocxample the DINA, but rather
requested information from the IMinistry of the Interior or SENDET, which were not
holding the prisomer and had no authority over thosc persons vho were. This
procedureé was fornmalized in an agreement Letwveen President of the Supreme Court
and the Director of the DIIA. The judpes did not require detainees to bhe brought
before them, wvhere their physical state could be checked, ncr did the judges visit
places of detention even vhen informed of the detainee's presence there. Vhen
the Ministry of the Interior or the SENDET informed the courts that "no records
exist" of the detention of a person, vhich vag irrelevant to the fact of detention
since DINA was empowered to arrcst without authority from the Ministry of the
Interior or the SENDET, the Courts recjected the apnlication for amparo even when
strong evidence of arrest and detention of the person existed. Of more than
5,000 requests for amparo made between Sentember 1973 and September 1979, only
four were granted and one, that ordering the release of Carlos Contreras Maluje,
has yet to be obeyed, gé/ S

20/ Convention on the Declaration of Death of Misging Persons. A/CONF,1/9,
(1950) article 3y para. L. The lapsce of a period of five wears after the
disappearance wvas also required as a condition 1o the issuance of a declaration.

21/ A/34/583/add.1, para. 158.
22/ A/34/58%/hdd.1, para. 159.
23/ Ibid., paras. 160-101.
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85, The report to the General Assembly also found that the effective criminal
investigation into allegations of illegal arrests and detentions and the
identification and punishment of the persons responsible is another valuable means
to prevent the disappearance of detainees. gﬁ/ Unfortunately, until 1979, the
Chilean Courts refused to investigate adegquately criminal complaints for the
disappearance of detainees. The judges failed to exercise in full their lawful
powers of investigation and they failed to require the DINA and its agents to
testify before them. In regard to 500 criminal cases for the disappearance of
detainees which were filed between September 1973 and 1978, in none of them was
the fate of the person clarified or the responsible persons punished. 25/ In 1979
the judges charged with the investigation of the missing persons of Lonquén and
laja showed the rcsultg that may be achieved by a judge exercising fully his
povers of investigation. gé/ At the present time some, but not all, cases of
missing persons are being investigated by special investigating judges and some
have been turned over to the Military Courts because of the involvement of
military personnel or the DINA. This turning over of the cases to the military
courts is a cause for concern since the military courts have not been in the
forefront in investigating missing persons and they may be reticent to condemn
publicly their collecagues of the Chilean Institutions of National Defence. The
exact state of most of the cases under investigation is not known because of the.
confidentiality of the procedure, but the judges should be encouraged to exercise
to the fuvll their powers of investigation and to obtain from the Government and
Military all information the courts judge relevant.

86. In spite of the developments of 1979, the failure of the Chilean Courts to
apply the remedy of amparo as laid down by the Constitution and laus of Chile and

to adequately investigate criminal complaints for disappearancesin recent years must
be seen as an important factor which permitted the continued disappearance of
detainees up to the end of 1977. 27/

Tbid., para. 162.
Tbid,

Ibid., para. 163,
Tbid., para. 164.

ek
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IV. THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE GOVERNMENT OF CHILE
UNDER INTERNATIONAL LAW -

87« The report tc the General Assembly declt in detail with the responsibility of
the Government of Chile under internati~nal law for the disappearance of detainees

in that country. l/ The work of the International Law Cemmission on State
responsibility and the decision of the Imternational Court of Justice in ‘the
Barcelona Traction Company Case were examined and it was shown that a Government,
such as that of Chile, was internationally responsible when the occurrence of nissing
persons amounts to a real situation of gross violations of human rights and for the
violation of specific internationally recogniged human rights involved.in the acts
leading to the disappearance of persons when thése acts are imputable to the State. g/
The obligation of Chile is towards the international comunity as such and is in
addition to its obligations to other States cr international organizations by reason
of the nationality or the status as an international civil servant of the vietim. i/
The disappearance of persons involved the specific. human rights of the right to life,
freedon from torture, liberty and security of person and the right téfprivacy and
family life. é/ The Government of Chile'!s international responsibility in connexion
with human rights in general and with respect to specific human rights is based on
many international instruments including the Charter of the United Nations, the
International Covenant on Civil and Political Rights, the Anerican Declaration on

the Rights and Duties of Man and the Geneva Conventions of .1949. ﬁ/

88. In establishing the responsibility of the Government of Chile for the situation
of missing persons in that country, the following. five elements were taken into
- consideration in the report to the General Assembly. 6/

A. The information contained in the Expert's report and that available
from the Ad Hoc Working Group on Chile, the Vicaria de la Solidaridad, and the
International Committee of the Red Cress shows that in at least 600 cases of
missing persons there is no doubt that the perscns were arrested by State
authorities, end that their fate has not been clarified;

‘B.- International law requires that any restrictions. an personal liberty
and security must be provided for by law and be foresecable and accessible.
If they are not foreseeable and aceessible then the restrictions on personal
liberty are unlawful. The powers secretly conferred on DINA to arrest and
detain persons cannot be considered as "lawful" under international law because
the restriction on personal liberty-sq authorized were not objective, foreseeable

Y/ 4/34/583/0dd.1, varas. 165-177.
2/ Ipid., paras. 165-170,

3/ Ibid., paras. 168-169.

4/ Ivid., para. 171.

5/ Ibid., paras. 173-174.

6/ Ipid., para. 175.
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or accesgible. . The recent information on the activities and the decision making
process of DINA demonstrates that in actual practice the arrest and detention

of persons by DINA followed no objective standards, was unforeseecable and
inaccessible and thus constituted in fact impermissablc restrictions on personal

liberty; R
C. The remedies available to relatives of missing persons were in almost
all instances ineffective both for releasing the detained person or in criminal

investigations for disappearances;

-

D. The Government of Chile tolerated the reported behaviour of the
Government organs responsible for the disappearance of persons and took no
step to strengthen the system of judicial protection for the rights of the
detainees even though it knew of the complete ineffectiveness of the remedy
of amparo dnd judicial investigation into disappearances. The Government

- took no action to establish responsibilitices for missing persons within its
national framework, on the contrary, by the ammesty decree~law the Government
waived the responsibility of the guilty personsg and authorities within the
national systenj v

E. The Govermment of Chile has not been willing to co-operate fully
with the United Nations-and other international organizations in the process
of clarifying the fate of missing persons.

89. The information recently reccived on the activities "of the DINA reinforces the
findings of the report to the General Assembly that-the Government of Chile establishel
and permitted to function an organization which in theory and practice systematically
violated the right to liberty and security of person. Further, this new information
shows that many persons died as a resuwlt of torture by government agents and that, in
addition, the headquerters of the DINA, responsible directly to the President of Chile,
nade decisions that certain persons were to be killed which were reflected:in the

code words "Puertomont™ - elimination on land and "Moneda'" - elimination at sea. It
may be doubted if the documents in which Buch deccisions were reflected have been
allowed to continuz in existence, especially in light of the report that registers

of detainees of the DINA detention centre Custro Alamas have been burned. 7/ The
Governments-of Chile, if this reliable information is indeed true, is not only
responsible for the arrest and detention of the missing persons, but also for the
deaths of persons eliminated by decision &F the DINA or killed under torturc.

7/ Ibid., para. 153.
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V. CONCLUSIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS

A. Conclusions

90. The information received since the ‘subnmission of the report to the

General Assembly confirms and reinforces the conclusions contained in that report. 1/
The new information received concerning the period from 11 September 1973 to the

end of that year reflects reports of the disappearance of detainees which had not
previously been made and shows that during that period persons believed to have been
connected with or supporters of the previous Government, and who were subsequently
reported as missing were detained and killed by carabineros or nilitary persorinel.
For the period 1974 through 1977 the new information has shown that of the persons
detained by the DINA some died as a result of torture and some were killed as a
result of decisions that they should be eliminated. No information haos been
received indicating the existence of places of long term detention of nissing persons
and thus, the available information would indicate that the problem of missing
detainees in Chile is one of their having been killed and their bodies hidden.

91. During the period September 1973 to late 1978 the Chilean judiciary in general
took no effective steps to prevent the disappearance of detainees through the use of
the remedy of amparo, nor to investigate complaints of disappearances. The. recent
judicial investigations into the mass graves at Lonquén and in the Yumbel cenetery
have encouraged Chileans to bring new complaints to the Courts concerning persons

who had disappeared in the past. However, not all the cases of missing persons are
being actively investigated by the Courts and no effective steps appear to have been
taken as yet to investigate the 300 graves found at the Santiago ceuetery, The
potential effectiveness of the judicial investigations is limited by the jurisdiction
of the military courts over DINA and military personnel and the fact that in cases
where such personnel are involved the civilian judges declare themselves without
jurisdiction and the cases are transferred to the military courts. Although the
status of many judicial investigations remains unknown due to the secrecy of the
procedure, it does not appear that the courts are receiving the full co-operation of
the Government and military authorities. in the ares of documents and the identity
of military personnel, Further, the recent decision requiring the deposit of
500,000 pesos as a condition to the continuation of an investigation into a complaint
by relatives of missing persons against the military prosecutor in comnexion with the
burial of the bodies of the Lonquén victims, evidences a lack of governmental concern
for the protection of the rights of the relatives of missirg persons.

92. The information recently received reinforces in particular the conclusion that
the Government of Chile is responsible under international law for the disappearance
of a large number of persons. Since the beginning of 1979 the fate of 34 missing
persons has been clarified thanks to the investigations in the case of Lonquén and
Laja and it would appear from the information regarding the cases of Mulchén and the
executions in Osorno, that the fate of some 16 other persons is in the process of
being determined, : : B -

93+ The case of the missing persons in Chile still constitutes d serious-éituafion

of gross.viglations of human rights both from the point of view of the human rights
of the missing persons themselves and from that of the large number of relatives of

1/ 4/34/583/Add.1, paras. 178-192.
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missing persons and their right to know the fate of their family members. Further,
the justice due to these relatives in the form of the identification and punishment
of those responsible for the disappearancesalso must not be forgotten. In regard to
the fact that no wcports have been received of persons haviry disappeared since 1978,
it is important to enphasize that the identification and punishment of those
responsible for disappearances in the years 1973 to 1977 would be an important
elencnt in preventing the reoccurrence of disappearances. Similarly, the failure
o identify and punish those responsible for disappearances might well encourage

some to see disdppearances as an acceptable method of operation in the administration
of national security in the future. Finally, the satisfaction of the legitimate
right to have brought teo judgement persons responsible for violations of Lundambﬂtal
mman rights is also important to the extent that the frustration of that right can
provoke regrettoble exbtrene actions which themselves involve the viclation of human

rights.

B. Recomendations

94. The information received since the subnigsion of the report to the

General Assembly gives new Jjustification for the recommendations contained in that
report, g/ he Expert wishes to draw attention to the recommendations of a
general nature contained in that report and which grew out of the study of the
situation in Chile. é/ These recommendations regard the obligations of the
international comunity in cases of large scale disappearances, the necessity

for respect for the rule of law - in emergency situations and - by State security
agencies, the need for strict limits on the powers of arrest and the proiibiticn
of secret places of detention. The wemedy of habeas corpus should be fully
applicable at all times including emergency situations and concerning persons
detained by security or military authorities. Finally, the United Nations should
be equipped to respond rapidly and effectively to reports of large scale
disappearances., '

95. With regard to the situation in Chile, é/ the Expert can only reiterate the
finding in report to the General Assembly, that the Government of Chile is vesponsible
under internationa’ law for the fate of at least 600 missing persons whose basic
rights as human beings have been violated and for those persons who met their deaths
in suspicious circumstances inputable to Govermaent agencies. The Chilean Government
owes it to the intemmational community tc explain and clarify the fate of these
nissing persons, to punish those responsible for the disappearances, to coupensate

the relatives of the victimg and to take measures to prevent such acts from recurring
in the future. 2/ Special attention should be given to informing the relatives

2/ Ibid., pares. 193-197.
3/ Ibid., paras. 193-196.
4/ Tbid., para. 197.
5/ Ibid., para. 177.
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about the whereabouts of the children born during detention., The Chilean Minister
of +the Interior has had information on some of these cases Tor nmore then a year and

o half and should be avle to provide precisc information in that regaxd. After the
fate of each pergwun is deternined fair co.pensation should ne wode to the relatives.
Investigationg now underway should be accelerated and the Jusisdiction of nilitary
courts over DINA and military personnel should not prevent full investigations and
the publication of the truth. In respect of the discovery of mass graves, in
particular in the Santiego cenetery, and the scarch for the burial places of the DINL
and in regard to the numerous cases of missing persons not actively under
investigation by the courts, the Government should institute an impartial and
independent investigation cormission which would have all necessary powers to identify
the bodies, especially in light of the lists of nissing persons of the Ad Hoc
Working Group in Chile, the Vicaria de la Solidaridad and the Internaticnal Committee
of the Red Cross. This comaission should also reconstruct the responsibility of the
agents of the State in those disappearances end draw up a list of those involved.

96, The Commission on Human Rights should continue tc concern itself with the
situation of missing persons in Chile with a view to encouraging respect for the
human rights of the missing persons, their relatives and to preventing the
reoccurrence of the disappearance of detainees, It is to be hoped that appropriate
arrangements will be made between the Govermment of Chile and the United Nations in
order to permit the most beneficial use to be made of the confidential information
on missing persons in Chile in the files of the United Hations. é/

6/ See above, para. 8l.





